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2013 30 2.6 2002
2008 2008
2011

2013 30 21.7 21.6
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JOBS Act (emerging growth company)
30
700 12 31
2012 12 31 2013 30 16.6 4.6
11.9 20.2 0.8 2.7
10
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2010
120,000
2011
2013 30 24.5
LIBOR
2012 12
31 16.0 2013 30 24.6
50
50
50
75
SBI
2006 SBI
12 SBI SBI
C C
2011 2012

2012 2013 30
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2012 2013 30

SBI

$ 5,500,000 0.94 2014 28 $ 358,329 $ 5,564,281
SBI

2,015,010 0.84 2014 31 19,143 2,031,922
SBI

624,840 0.84 2014 31 5,936 630,081
SBI

610,150 0.84 2014 31 5,796 615,273
SBI

3,250,000 0.84 2014 30 30,875 3,277,267

$12,000,000 $12,118,824

3,636,364
2014
2010 2011 2012
218,000 217,000 216,000
FDA NDA FDA
2013 31 18,000
2013 30,000
2010 2012 12 31 113,782
626,000 626,000
2010 2011 2012
551,000 18,000 57,000
359,000
1 2012
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FDA
2012 12 31 31.6 24.2 7.4
30.7 OPA-6566
1/2 6.5 1.2
0.6
OPA-6566
VeM
12 31
2011 2012 2011 2012
2011 2012
13,285 13,707 422 3.2%
7,756 15,382 7,626 98.3%
3,142 2,515 (627) (20.0)%
24,183 31,604 7,421 30.7%
2013 30 26.2 3.5
15.5 2b/3
7.1 OPA-6566 1/2
3.5
OPA-6566
VCM
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30
2012 2013 2012 2013

2012 2013

9,743 16,813 7,070 72.6%

@

11,074 7,528 (3,546) (32.0)%

1,878 1,880 2 0.1%

22,695 26,221 $3,526 15.5%

(1) 2012 2013 30
GAAP
@
© (d)

Q) (i)
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2013 30
27.0 2013 30
0.9

NOL

2012 12 31 2013 30 2.7
1.6 0.9
2022 2031
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2012 12 31 2013 30
12
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2012
2012 24 163,900 $ 9.30 $ 9.30 $ 5.88
2012 11 90,000 10.33 10.33 5.01
2013 14 55,000 10.33 10.33 4.71
2013 22 55,250 22.69 22.69 11.07
16.50 2013 30
4.9 1.8
2006 12
2028
DCF

DCF
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DCF
2013
1PO PWERM
PWERM 1PO
PWERM
PWERM
PWERM 1PO
1PO 1PO
1PO
1PO
1PO 1PO
PWERM
@
)
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2012
2012
2012 24
2012 10
2012 10
2012 10
2012 11
2013
2013
2013 22

2013

AMD

PWERM

2012
1.5
2012 10
14
2012
2013
2013
100

22

22

2012 10

22.69

9.30
0.26
25
NDA 2019
10.33
0.17
20
9.30
25
20
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FDA

2013 JbC
JbC

2012 10 10.33 2013 22.69

FDA
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2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

2013

2012

12

12

12

12

30

30

30

5.0

3.1

39.6

9.5
42.2

7.5

10.3

13.6

20.5

7.8

0.1

2.0

25.6

2014
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2011 12 31

2012 30

2011 12 31

2012 30

1.7

2011 12 31
28

2012 30

2011 12 31
4.3
2012 30

2011 12 31
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3.2

18.4
2.7
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2013 30 31.8 2012 30 6.5 25.7
5.0
2009
2007 28.2
12.0
2012 12 31 2013 30 23.6
21.7
2012 12 31
2013 30
5.0 i
LIBOR 1.25 i
LIBOR 1.25 2014 20
2012 12 31 2013 30
0.4 4.6 2012
12 31 2013 30 5.8 5.8
2011 2012 12 31 2012 2013 30
30
12 31
2011 2012 2012 2013
437 11,246 9,984 1,018
(4,093) (3,743) (5,568)  (10,912)
(581) (624) 409)  (2,173)
2011 2012 12 31 0.4
11.2 2012 4.2 2.4
3.6 1.9 1.3
2011 6.3 5.2
2.6
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10.0 1.0
2.6
2.0
2011 2012
2013 30
2011 2012
2012 2013
2.2
2012 30
2013 30
6.6
5.0
4.8

2012 2013
2013 30
5.1
1.0
4.1
4.1
2012 30
0.6
5.0
2013
18.7
2b/3
14.5
OPA-6566
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30
2012 2013 2012 2013
2012 2013 ()
13,999 28,464 14,465 103.3%
@ 21,142 13,231 (7,911) (37.4)%
35,141 41,695 $6,554 18.7%
() 2012 2013 30
2013 30
14.5 103.3 20/3 5.0
2013 30
7.9 37.4 172 4.8
3.1 2.0
2013
2.0
2013 30 26.2 3.5
15.5 2b/3
7.1 OPA-6566 172

3.5

OPA-6566
VCM

106/271



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoOooOoOddooOoomdmr
30
2012 2013 2012 2013
2012 2013
9,743 16,813 7,070 72.6%
@
11,074 7,528 (3.546) (32.0)%
1,878 1,880 2 0.1%
22,695 26,221 $3,526 15.5%
(1) 2012 2013 30
2013 30
7.1 72.6 2b/3
2013 30
OPA-6566 1/2 3.5 32.0 2013
2013 30
2013 30 1.8 29.7
7.7 CEO
0.8
2013 30 2.7 2012 30
2.3 2013 2012 35
36 34
2011 12 31 2012
46.4 34.2 12.2
35.6 11.1
8.1
5.0
3.0 2011
3.9 VCM
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OPA-6566
VCM
VCM
12 31
2011 2012 2011 2012
2011 2012
17,779 19,328 1,549 8.7%
12,557 27,096 14,539 115.8%
VCM 3,890 - (3.890) (100.0)%
34,226 46,424 12,198 35.6%
2012 12 31 17.8
1.5 8.7 19.3 2012 12 31
2b/3
2012 12 31 12.6
14.5 115.8 27.1 2012
2012 5.0
vew 2012 12 31 15.0
2011 12 31 3.9
2011
2012 12 31 31.6 24.2 7.4
30.7 OPA-6566
1/2 1.2
0.6
OPA-6566
Ve
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12 31
2011 2012 2011 2012
2011 2012

13,285 13,707 422 3.2%
7,756 15,382 7,626 98.3%
3,142 2,515 (627) (20.0)%
24,183 31,604 7,421 30.7%

2012 12 31 13.3

0.4 3.2 13.7
2b/3
2012 12 31 7.8
7.6 98.3 15.4 OPA-6566
1/2
2012 12 31 3.1 0.6
20.0 2.5
2012 12 31 6.2 1.6 26.1
7.8
1.2
0.3
2011 2.5 2012 2.6
2011 2012 (65.0 ) 38.8
2012 34.0
2011
2012 12 31 2013 30
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2010 630 2011
2012 12 31 2011 2012 12
31 166 326
21,000
17,000
2015
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Oo0o00000000d
11,971,728 D)
60,000,000 ) 48,028,272
26,421,959 33,578,041
52,452,514 32,441,604 20,010,910
@ 10,813,867 3,636,364
c
@
2012 300,000
2013
®) 90
@
® (@
(i)
Gii)
©
144
180
a
C a
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@ 11,971,728
A
2,734,334
)
B
17,899,998
)
c
11,807,272
w @
A B c
2012 300,000
696,876 7.21
c
2012
SBI
2014
5,500,000 0.94 28 358,329 5,564,281
SBI
2014
2,015,010 0.84 31 19,143 2,031,922
SBI
2014
624,840 0.84 31 5,936 630,081
SBI
2014
610,150 0.84 31 5,796 615,273
SBI
2014
3,250,000 0.84 30 30,875 3,277,267
12,000,000 12,118,824
c
3,636,364
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145.00 30,219,538
2008 100 | 43,871,899 (14,853) | (3,095,689,472)
423.40 30,219,962

2008 28 292 | 43,872,191 (43,373) | (3,095,732,907)
6,090.00 30,226,052

2009 12 4,200 | 43,876,391 (623,859) | (3,096,356,766)
1,999.50 30,228,051

2009 31 3,225 | 43,879,616 (204,828) | (3,096,561,544)
6,000.00 30,234,051

2009 21 50,000 | 43,929,616 (614,640) | (3,097,176,184)
31,000.00 30,265,051

2009 21 50,000 | 43,979.616 | ((3,175,640) | (3,100,351,824)
6,200.00 30,271,251

2009 11 10,000 | 43,989,616 (635,128) | (3,100,986,952)
2,500.00 30,273,751

2009 25 5,000 | 43,994,616 (256,100) | (3,101,243,052)
439,603.00 30,713,354

2009 27 136,100 | 44,130,716 | (45,032,931) | (3,146,275,983)
10,400.50 30,723,755

2009 10 16,775 | 44,147,491 (1,065,427) | (3,147,341,462)
1,000.00 30,724,755

2009 10 2,000 | 44,149,491 (102,440) | (3,147,443,902)
145.00 30,724,900

2009 10 29 100 | 44,149,591 (14,853) | (3,147,458,756)
6,200.00 30,731,100

2010 30 10,000 | 44,159,591 (635,128) | (3,148,093,884)
31,000.00 30,762,100

2010 31 50,000 | 44,209,591 (3,175,640) | (3.151,269,524)
1,200.00 30,763,300

2010 19 10,000 | 44,219,591 (122,928) | (3,151,392,452)
6,200.00 30,769,500

2010 19 10,000 | 44,229,591 (635,128) | (3,152,027,580)
550,140.00 31,319,640

2010 28 106,000 | 44,335,591 [ (56,356,341) | (3,208,383,921)
4,350.00 31,323,990

2011 31 3,000 | 44,338,591 (445,614) | (3,208,829,535)
18,770.72 31,342,760

2011 11 18 2,278 | 44,340,869 (1,922,872) | (3,210,752,334)
975.72 31,343,736

2012 29 188 | 44,341,057 (99,952) | (3,210,852,315)
1,822.80 31,345,559

2012 25 196 | 44,341,253 (186,727) | (3,211,039,063)
323.00 31,345,882

2012 22 100 | 44,341,353 (33,088) | (3,211,072,152)
600.00 31,346,482

2012 11 5,000 | 44,346,353 (61,464) | (3,211,133,616)
1,074.32 31,347,556

2012 11 15 104 | 44,346,457 (110,053) | (3,211,243,636)
53,757.32 31,401,314

2012 12 31 5,204 | 44,351,661 (5,506,899) | (3,216,750,606)
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2,400.00 31,403,714
2013 11 20,000 | 44,371,661 (245,856) | (3,216,996,462)
215,029.28 31,618,743
2013 15 20,816 | 44,392,477 | (22,027,599) | (3,239,024,032)
1,200 31,619,943
2013 10,000 | 44,402,477 (122,928) | (3,239,146,960)
1,804.56 31,621,748
2013 219 | 44,402,696 (184,859) | (3,239,331,865)
241,330.84 31,863,079
2013 31 10,636 | 44,413,332 | (24,721,931) | (3,264,053,812)
2008 541,533
31,863
2008
1
20 9,297,372 35.2
@ 1 11,620,654 44.0
10 4,849,828 18.4
26 654,105 2.5
57 26,421,959 100
1 10,813,867 3,636,364
c
2
26,421,959 11,971,728
10,813,867 3,636,364
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1301 Second Avenue, Suite 1900,
Seattle, Washington 98101 11,620,654 44.0
101-8535 1,888,011 7.1
2-9
SBI 106-6019
1-6-1 1,871,250 7.1
19
106-6019
1-6-1 1,777,778 6.7
19
772-8601
1,515,152 5.7
115
SB1 106-6019
1-6-1 1,257,252 4.8
19
106-6019
1-6-1 1,111,111 4.2
19
SBl 106-6019
1-6-1 779,502 3.0
19
SBI 106-6019
1-6-1 374,817 1.4
19
Japan New Technology 141-0021
2-15-19-720 212,721 1.0
542-0082
266,667 1.0
1-10-15
22,734,921 86.0
1 SBI SBI SBI
29.3
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47 2014 11,630,654 O]
(1966 10 18 )
L 46 40,580 ©
(Pavid L. Lowrance) (1967 10 )
50 51,200 ©
(Hien DeYoung) (1963 )
A 70 2014 20,000 Q)
(Peter A. Kresel)(z)(3) (1943 12 )
Y 54 2014 40,000 ©)
(Glen Y. Sato)(1)(2)(10) (1959 26 )
(Michael 51 2014 11,250 ©)
Schutzler) @00 (1962 )
44 2014 -
(Brian O'Callaghan)(l)(lo) (1969 )
@
)
®@
) 2013 12 27 60 10,000
(©) 2013 12 27 60 40,580
6) 2013 12 27 60 51,200
() 2013 12 27 60 20,000
@®) 2013 12 27 60 40,000
©) 2013 12 27 60 11,250
(10)
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Ph.D. 2002 CEO 2005
2002 2006 2002 2002 2002
11 2006 2007 2011 Acucela Inc.
Ph.D. 1996
AAO ARVO 2008
CEO
L 2011 2011
Acucela Inc. 2003 2011
Cumberland Pharmaceuticals Inc. 1994 2003
BorgWarner Inc. Icore International, Inc.
2011 2009 2011
2006 2009
DeYong Consulting CEO
1998 11 2006
CEPTYR, Inc.
2004
Senior Professional In Human Resources (SPHR) certification
Certified Predictive Index Assessment Analyst
A 2007 2005
13 2006
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
Y 2009 2006 Cooley
LLP 2003 2006 PDL BioPharma Inc.
Protein Design Labs, Inc 1999 2003

Exelixis, Inc.

2003
Intarcia Therapeutics, Inc.
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2012 2013
CEO
Livemocha, Inc. CEO 2010 Rosetta Stone 2013
2007 CEOsherpa LLC
1998 2012 Digital Forest Inc. 2008 2010 Talent Spring
Inc. 2003 2007
RealNetworks, Inc. 2003 2004
Monster Worldwide, Inc. 2000 2002
Classmates.com Classmates Media Corporation CEO 2007
FlowPlay Inc. 2010
¢
2013 Sangart Inc.
CEO NPS Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Covance Inc.
Novartis Pharmaceuticals Corporation
BioPartners Merck Biopharmaceuticals Pfizer
Bayer
MBA

BIOCOM Aquavit Biopharma

-
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SEC
NYSE
Acucela Inc., 1301 Second Avenue, Suite 1900, Seattle, Washington
98101, Investor Relations www.acucela.com
NYSE SEC
S-K 407(d)
NYSE
SEC
CEO
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NYSE SEC
2012
2014
7,500 2,500
12
2012
12,500 2012
20,000
9.30 2002
2002
5,000 2012 11 7,500 2012 16
2012 24
2012 12 31

2012
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0000000000000
@
@
A - - 216,000 216,000
Y 12,500 104,149 - 116,649
10,000 134,335 - 144,335
w SBI 2012 12 31
@ 13 FASB ASC Topic 718
2012
(€Y
2012 12 31
A 20,000
Y 40,000
20,000
(©)]
2012 12 31
2012
2012 12 31
@ ®)
@ ®)
(O]
CEO 485,000 100,000 56,654 - 320,100  107,359<7 1,069,113
L
289,800 16,000 - 376,801 93,200  89,008®® 864,809
249,500 16,000 - - 80,249 17,625 363,374
(1)2013 29 2013 289,800
308,544 249,500 259,512
@ 13 FASB ASC Topic 718
2012
(€Y
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?) 13 FASB ASC Topic 718
2012
@

(O)) 2012 Acucela

®)

®) 2012

)

56,654 2
32,495 13,601 4,609
®) 50,000 13,500 13,581
7,408 4,609

[©) 13,016 4,609

2012
2012 2002 9.30
67,900 2013 23 20
2012 5,504 56,654
8.333
50
60
18
56,654
2012 12
32,495
2012 Acucela
Acucela
Acucela
2012
60 30

30
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Acucela
100%
L 65% 35Y%
65% 35Y%
2012 110 110 10 30
110 OPA-6566
2012
110
CEO
110
2012
110 2012
102 2012 Acucela
320,100
L 93,200
80,249
2012 12 31
2012 12 31
@ @ ®
10,000¢” - 1.45 2017 24,660
L 13,500® 54,000 4.52 2021 17 - _
- 67,900(5) 9.30 2022 24 - _
40,000 - 3.23 2019 28 _ _
5.600 22,400 4.52 2021 21 _ _
(€))
(€))
@ 8.333

100
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(©)

(4) 2007 27 25
(5) 2012 23 20
(6) 2009 25
(7) 2012 20

2013
456,000
2012
2013

330,000

CEO
485,000
60
51

2012
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16.50

30 31,452

456,000

36



COBRA
18
L
308,544
259,512
12
2012
2012
2012
2012 1986

10
2014
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COBRA

300
18
30
12
Acucela
2014 12 13
12
Acucela
2012
2012
10
110
2012
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180

18

2011

2002

2013

2012

422



2013

2002

2002

2014

2014

2002

2014

2014

2014

2014

30
2012
2002
780,963
2002
2002
2012
2002
2012

2012

15.46

2012

2012

2002

2002

592,781

2013

300,000
2012

2014

2014
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1,436,920 2013 30
131,750
1,236,670 2013 30
2014
2014
2012
2002
2013 30 2002
2013 30 270,299
30 5.42
2002
2014
2014
12 31
2014
10
2014
4,000,000
2,000,000
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2014

2014

2014 422

2014
20,000,000

10
110

2014
10 10

2014

2014

12
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2013
2013

Acucela

401(%)
401(K)

23B.08.310

50
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2013
2013

626,000

31

18,000

2010

551,000

FDA

18,000

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

oOoooooooooood
SEC
2014
2010 2011 2012
218,000 217,000 216,000
NDA FDA
30,000
2012 12 31 113,782
626,000
2010 2011 2012
57,000
359,000

2012
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2011 2012
133,724 18,320 347,955 26,269
(13,698,686 ) (1,876,700 ) (35,644,510 ) (2,690,996 )
133,724 18,320 347,955 26,269
(13,698,686 ) (1,876,700 ) 35,644,510 ) (2,690,996 )
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Acucela Inc. 2011 2012 12 31
SEC Form S-1
Form S-1
38 59 129
40 321 35
32 12 193
2012 2013 30 2013 30
2013 30
2012 2013 30
19
63 85
SEC
132
2013 12
102.44
4.
4.
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31 12 31
2011 2012
9,760 999,814 16,639 1,704,499
9,357 958,531 6,927 709,601
- - 5,009 513,121
12,251 1,254,992 8,700 891,228
507 51,937 770 78,878
484 49,580 1,521 155,811
32,359 3,314,855 39,566 4,053,141
1,360 139,318 1,143 117,088
- - 750 76,830
6,591 675,182 3,895 399,003
586 60,029 1,199 122,825
599 61,361 471 48,249
41,495 4,250,747 47,024 4,817,138
10,765 1,102,766 6,500 665,860
2,684 274,948 735 75,293
1,798 184,187 3,109 318,485
1,635 167,489 2,413 247,187
- - 570 58,390
- - 249 25,507
16,882 1,729,392 13,576 1,390,725
538 55,112 341 34,932
2,000 204,880 2,000 204,880
1,235 126,513 5,500 563,420
3,773 386,506 7,841 803,232
52,453
A
2,734 2,051 2,051 210,104 2,051 210,104
B
17,900 13,425 13,387 1,371,364 13,387 1,371,364
c 31,818
11,807
12,988 ) 12,771 1,308,261 12,771 1,308,261
60,000
2011 12 31 11,899
2012 12 31 11,910 3,133 320,944 3,192 326,988
1,441 147,616 1,965 201,294
©) (614) - -
(11,937) (1,222,826) (7,759) (794,831)
20,840 2,134,849 25,607 2,623,181
41,495 4,250,747 47,024 4,817,138

134/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoOooOoOddooOoomdmr
ACUCELA INC.
12 31 12 31
2011 2012

34,226 3,506,111 46,424 4,755,674
24,183 2,477,306 31,604 3,237,513
6,174 632,464 7,787 797,700
30,357 3,109,771 39,391 4,035,214
3,869 396,340 7,033 720,460
21 2,151 27 2,765
(143) (14,648) (138) (14,136)
39 3,995 7 (9,936)
(83) (8,502) (208) (21,307)
3,786 387,837 6,825 699,153
2,480 254,051 (2,647) (271,158)
6,266 641,889 4,178 427,994
4,584 469,584 3,056 313,056
1,682 172,304 1,122 114,937
0.14 14 0.09 9
0.14 14 0.09 9

11,897 11,901

12,045 12,158
0.16 16
0.16 16

26,351
26,608
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31 12 31
2011 2012
6,266 641,889 4,178 427,994
28 2,868 6 614
6,294 644,757 4,184 428,608
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ACUCELA INC.
A B C

2010 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,894 3,110 1,019 34 (18,203) 14,101
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (318,588) (104,386)  ((3,482)) ((1,864,715)) (1,444,506)
- - - - - - - - 422 - - 422
) (@) ) ) (43,229 (@) (@) (43,229)
- - - - - - 3 5 - - - 5
) ) ) (512) ) ) ) (512)
- - - - - - 2 18 - - - 18
) (@) ) (1,843) (@) ) (@) (1,843)
- - - - - - - - - - 6,266 6,266
) (@) ) (@) (@) (@) (641,889)  (641,889)
- - - - - - - - - 28 - 28
© @) © @) O .88 © @68

2011 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,899 3,133 1,441 ®) (11,937) 20,840
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (320,944) (147,616) ((614)) ((1,222,826)) (2,134,849)
- - - - - - - - 524 - - 524
@) @) @) O (53,678) @) O (3,678
_ _ _ _ - - 5 2 - - - 2
) (@) ) (204) (@) (@) (@) (204)
- - - - - - 6 57 - - - 57
) ) ) (5,839) Q) (@) ) (5,839)
- - - - - - - - - - 4,178 4,178
) (@) ) (@) (@) ) (427,994)  (427,994)
- - - - - - - - - 6 - 6
(@) ) (@) ) ) (614) (@) (614)

2012 12 31
2,734 2,051 17,900 13,387 11,807 12,771 11,910 3,192 1,965 - (7,759) 25,607
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (326,988) (201,294) () ((794,831)) (2,623,181)
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ACUCELA INC.
12 31 12 31
2011 2012
6,266 641,889 4,178 427,994
789 80,825 464 47,532
12 1,229 10 1,024
- - 79 8,092
440 45,073 581 59,517
193 19,770 107 10,961
(2,632) (269,622) 2,434 249,338
(5,154) (527,975) 3,551 363,764
510 52,244 (1,037) (106, 230)
1,057 108,279 (1,949) (199, 655)
(1,518) (155,503) 1,315 134,708
1,277 130,815 778 79,698
(313) (32,063) 48 4,017
(557) (57,059) 570 58,390
67 6,863 117 11,985
437 44,766 11,246 1,152,040
(18,433) (1,888,276) (15,580) (1,596,015)
14,506 1,485,994 12,163 1,245,977
(166) (17,005) (326) (33,395)
(4,093) (419, 286) (3,743) (383,432)
5 512 2 204
- - (13) (1,331)
(586) (60,029) (613) (62,795)
(581) (59,517) (624) (63,922)
(4,237) (434,038) 6,879 704,684
13,997 1,433,852 9,760 999,814
9,760 999,814 16,639 1,704,499
63 6,453 420 43,024
132 13,522 151 15,468
- - 5,750 589,030
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2010

2008

2010

2008

VCM
VCM
AMD
FDA
OPA-6566
10,813,867

ACUCELA INC.

3.50
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AMD
AMD
2b/3
OPA-6566
25
2012 12 31
3,636,364
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2011 2012 12 31 15

(@ O)
©) o)
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20

VSOE

11

BESP

Q)

2012 12 31

VSOE

TPE

(i)

Q)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoOooOoOddooOoomdmr
15
(i)
VSOE
TPE
BESP
O)
(i)
(i)
(i)
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48

20
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2011 2012 12 31
12 31
2011 2012
1.2%-2.1% 1.0%
6.3 6.3
—h —h
65% 50%—65%
2012 12 31 2013 23
2013 11 16
25 3.50
2012 12 31
C
3,636,364
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12 31
2011 2012

$ 1,682 $ 1,122

11,897 11,901
148 257

12,045 12,158

2012 12 31
2012 12 31

2012
12 31

$ 4,178
75
$ 4,253

11,901

3,636
10,814
26,351

257
26,608

2011 2012 12 31

2011 2012 12 31
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2008
AMD
5
40
(i) 40
40
82.5
JDC
i 55
a. 2b/3 5
b.
FDA NDA
C. FDA NDA 15
d. FDA NDA 20
e.
ii 27.5

a 5
b. FDA NDA 7.5
C. FDA NDA 10
d.

(@) 360

©)
LIBOR
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40
O
2011
5
10
5
©
Money Rates
@
Acucela
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2012 12 31
15.4 2012 12 31
372
175
Jcc
a. 250 25
b. 500 50
c. 1,000 100
2011
5
5
BESP
BESP
2011 2012 12 31 17,779

19,329
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BESP 15
2011 3,890
2011
ASC 605-28
2011 2012 12 31 2012 31
2013 31
2b/3 5
2008
2 30
() 5 @ FDA NDA
5 ©) 20
2011 2012
5,869 13,987
2012
5 2011 12 31
2
2011 2012 12 31 2
OPA-6566
2010 OPA-6566
OPA-6566
(€D OPA-6566
@ (©)
A2a
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2011 2012
6,689 8,108
CEO
CEO
NDA
2011 2012 12 31
2011 12 31
$ 1,125 $ - % - % 1,125
1,502 - @ 1,501
1,408 - - 1,408
890 - - 890
6,233 - ) 6,228
7,691 - - 7,691
274 - - 274
$ 19,123 $ - 3 ®6) $ 19,117
2012 12 31
$ 797 $ 13 - % 798
5,969 - ©) 5,967
1,225 - - 1,225
6,500 1 - 6,501
14,306 - - 14,306
528 - - 528
$ 29,325 $ 2 % 2 $ 29,325
2012 12 31 750 2011 2012 12 31
12
2012 12 31
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2011 2012 12 31
2011 12 31

1 2 3
$ 7,601 $ - % - $ 7,691
- 905 - 905
- 890 - 890
7,691 1,795 - 9,486
274 - - 274
$ 7,965 $ 1,795  $ - $ 9,760
$ -3 1,125  $ - 3 1,125
- 1,501 - 1,501
- 503 - 503
- 6,228 - 6,228
$ - $ 9,37 $ - $ 9,357

2012 12 31

1 2 3
$ 14,306  $ - 3 - $ 14,306
- 1,225 - 1,225
- 586 - 586
14,306 1,811 - 16,117
528 - - 528
$ 14,834  $ 1,811 $ - $ 16,645
$ - 3 798 $ - 3 798
- 5,381 - 5,381
- 6,501 - 6,501
$ - $ 12,680 $ - $ 12,680
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2011 2012 12 31 12 2011
2012 12 31 4 47
2011 2012 12 31
12 31
2011 2012
$ 2,373 $ 2,374
1,740 1,808
411 432
4,524 4,614
(3.164) (3,471)
$ 1,360 $ 1,143
2011 2012 12 31 789 464

151/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

0000000000000
2006 29 12
$3,250,000 $3,250,000 $5,500,000
2006 29 2006 29 2006 29
2009 31 2010 30 2012 11 30
1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
$1,234,990 $2,015,010 $3,250,000 $5,500,000
2009 31 2010 30 2012 11 30
2010 31 2011 30 2014 28
1.20% 1.05% 0.94%
2010 31 2011 30 2012 11 30
$1,234,990 $2,015,010 $3,250,000
2010 31 2011 30
2011 31 2012 30
1.02% 0.97%
2011 31 2012 30
$624,840 $610,150 $2,015,010 $3,250,000
2011 31 2011 31 2012 30
2013 31 2012 31 2013 30
2012 31 0.96% 0.96% 0.95%
2013 31 0.96%
2012 31 2012 31 |2013 30
$2,015,010
2012 31
2013 31
0.95%
2013 31
2012 12 31 6.5 36
4
5.5

90
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C
1.10
2011 2012
10
2012 12 31
2011 12 31

2,738

63

3.50

SBI

2022

420

2031
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25

3.30

SBI

1,625
2023 2029
IRC 382

2,632
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12 31
2011 2012
3,70  $ 811
1,600 1,625
680 680
662 886
160 192
152 365
54 106
$ 7,008 % 4,665
$ 507 $ 770
6,591 3,895
$ 7,008 $ 4,665
2011 2012 12
12 31
2011 2012
$ 152 $ 169
(2,632) 2,478
$ (2,480) $ 2,647
12 31
2011 2012
34..0% 34..0%
(54.1) 0.0
(48.1) 0.0
3.2 4.8
(65.0%) 38.8%
2008
IRS 2008
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50
2011 2012 12 31 2012 2013 31
12
2011 2012 12 31
2012 2013
2012 2012
2012 2012 12 31

2013

11
2015
2012 12 31
2013 $ 923,000
2014 936,000
2015 170,000
$ 2,029,000
2011 2012 12 31 958 849
5
LIBOR
1.25 LIBOR 1.25
2014 20 2012 12 31
2012 12 31 0.4
4.6 2012 12 31
5.8
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12

17,899,998

60,000,000
52,452,514
31,818,182 A B
A B
0.75
C
3.30
A B C 3.50
A B
0.75 A B
C
1.10 C
A B C
A B C
A B C
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2,734,334

0.25

1.10

25



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoOooOoOddooOoomdmr
A B c
50
A B c
13.
2012 12 31
2,120,055
10
25 1/48
20 1/60
2011 2012 12 31
2010 12 31 1,099,229 668,979 $ 3.22 354,015
300,000 - -
(423,500) 423,500 5.22
- (3,000) 1.45
99,342 (99,342) 4.35
194,834 (194,834) 2.55
2011 12 31 1,269,905 795,303 4.31 288,988
(253,900) 253,900 9.67
- (5.288) 0.36
204,534 (204,534) 4.64
28,553 (28,553) 4.97
2012 12 31 1,249,092 810,828 $ 5.91 389,440
2011 2012 12 31 2.86 3.66
2011 2012 12 31 9
47
2011 2012 12 31 3,124
3,586
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2011 2012 12 31 1,553
2,598
2011 2012 3.25
5.59
2012 12 31
2012 12 31
)
$0.12-$0.62 40,000 0.91 40,000
$1.45-$3.23 180,900 5.64 178,526
$4.52-$8.24 336,028 7.40 153,903
$9.30-$10.33 253,900 9.56 17,011
810,828 7.36 389,440
2011 2012 12 31 6.35
5.53
2011 2012 12 31
1 470 1,771 3.71
3.58 2011 2012 12 31
422 482
CEO
51
36
2011 2012 12 31
18 57 2,278 5,504
30 89
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14.401(k)
1986 401 k
15.
Peter Kresel
Kresel 2011 2012
217 216
5 2011 2012 12 31
8.31 6.67
14.98
SBI 9

16.

2013 2b/3
5 2013
CEO
2013
2013 786
2013
2 2013 30
2013 10 18
35 30 2013 10 21
2013 12 31
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ACUCELA INC.
2012 2013 2013

12 31 30 30
16,639 1,704,499 4,572 468,355
6,927 709,601 17,147 1,756,538
5,009 513,121 3,040 311,417
8,700 891,228 13,793 1,412,954
770 78,878 770 78,878
1,521 155,811 2,828 289,700
39,566 4,053,141 42,150 4,317,846
1,143 117,088 1,220 124,976
750 76,830 2,725 279,149
3,895 399,003 1,912 195,865
1,199 122,825 4,122 422,257
471 48,249 354 36,263
47,024 4,817,138 52,483 5,376,358
6,500 665,860 12,000 1,229,280
735 75,293 801 82,054
3,109 318,485 5,194 532,073
2,413 247,187 2,260 231,514
570 58,390 - -
249 25,507 259 26,531
13,576 1,390,725 20,514 2,101,454
341 34,932 129 13,214
2,000 204,880 - -
5,500 563,420 - -
7,841 803,232 129 13,214
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0o0000000000dd
2012 2013 2013
12 31 30 30
52,453
A
2,734 2,051
2,051 210,104 2,051 210,104 - -
B
17,900 13,425
13,387 1,371,364 13,387 1,371,364 - -
c
31,818
11,807
12,988 )
12,771 1,308,261 12,771 1,308,261 - -
60,000
2012 12 31 11,910
2013 30 11,972
26,422 3,192 326,988 3,654 374,315 43,863 4,493,325
1,965 201,294 2,638 270,236 2,638 270,236
- - 13) (1,331) 3)  (1,331)
(7,759)  (794,831) (2.648)  (271,261) (2,648)  (271,261)
25,607 2,623,181 31,840 3,261,689 43,840 4,490,969

47,024 4,817,138

52,483 5,376,358
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ACUCELA INC.
30

2012 2013
35,141 3,599,844 41,695 4,271,235
22,695 2,324,875 26,221 2,686,079
5,953 609,825 7,724 791,246
28,648 2,934,701 33,945 3,477,325
6,493 665,142 7,750 793,910
24 2,458 101 10,346
(104) (10,653) (88) (9,014)
@1 (2,151) 71 7,273
(101) (10,346) 84 8,604
6,392 654,796 7,834 802,514
2,283 233,870 2,723 278,944
4,109 420,925 5,111 523,570
3,006 307,934 3,735 382,613
1,103 112,991 1,376 140,957
0.09 9 0.12 12
0.09 9 0.11 11

11,900 11,961

12,147 12,346
0.20 20
0.19 19

26,411
26,796
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ACUCELA INC.
30
2012 2013
4,109 420,925 5,111 523,570
4 409 13) (1,331)
4,113 421,335 5,098 522,239
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ACUCELA INC.
30

2012 2013
4,109 420,925 5,111 523,570
344 35,239 395 40,463
8 819 - -
10 1,024 - -
373 38,210 1,006 103,054
59 6,043 233 23,868
2,110 216,148 1,983 203,138
1,046 107,152 (5,093) (521,726)
(1,254) (128,459) (1,307) (133,889)
(1,618) (165,747) 22) (2,253)
1,268 129,893 1,516 155,299
228 23,356 (153) (15,673)
(33) (3,380) (198) (20,283)
3,220 329,856 (2,570) (263,270)
114 11,678 117 11,985
9,984 1,022,760 1,018 104,283
(10,890)  (1,115,571) (20,506)  (2,100,634)
5,508 564,239 10,066 1,031,161
(186) (19,053) “72) (48,351)
(5,568) (570, 385) (10,912)  (1,117,825)
3 307 6 614
- - 32) (3,278)
(412) (42,205) (2,270) (232,538)
- - 123 12,600
(409) (41,897) (2,173) (222,602)
4,007 410,477 (12,067)  (1,236,143)
9,760 999,814 16,639 1,704,499
13,767 1,410,291 4,572 468,355
- - 653 66,893
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ACUCELA INC.
Acucela Inc. 2012 12 31
GAAP
(SEC)
GAAP
2012 12 31
2013 30
GAAP
3.50 25
2013 30
3,636,364 10,813,867
2013 11
25
3.50 2013 30
C 3,636,364
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30
2012 2013

$ 1,103 $ 1,376

11,900 11,961
248 385

12,147 12,346

2012 2013 30

2013 30
2013 30

2013
30

$ 5,111
55
$ 5,166

11,961

3,636
10,814
26,411

385
26,796

2012 2013 30
2012 2013 30 2012 12 31 2013 30
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12
2012 12 31 2013 30

2012 12 31
$ 798 $ 1 $ - $ 799
5,968 - ® 5,966
1,225 - - 1,225
6,500 1 - 6,501
14,306 - - 14,306
528 - - 528
$ 29,325 $ 2 $ @ $ 29,325

2013 30
$ 1,023 $ 2 $ - 8 1,025
15,600 - ®) 15,595
1,639 - ) 1,638
4,985 2 (11) 4,976
3,360 - - 3,360
890 - - 890
$ 27,497 $ 4 $ an $ 27,484

2013 30
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2012 12 31 2013 30
2012 12 31

1 2 3
$ 14,306 $ - $ - $ 14,306
- 1,225 - 1,225
- 586 - 586
528 - - 528
$ 14,834 $ 1,811 $ - $ 16,645
$ - $ 798 $ - $ 798
- 5,381 - 5,381
- 6,501 - 6,501
$ - $ 12,680 $ - $ 12,680

2013 30

1 2 3
$ 3,30 $ - s - $ 3,360
- 625 - 625
890 - - 890
$ 4,250 $ 625 $ - $ 4,875
$ - $ 1,025 $ - $ 1,025
- 15,595 - 15,595
- 1,013 - 1,013
- 4,976 - 4,976
$ - $ 22,609 $ - $ 22,609
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2012 12 31 2013 30 12
2012 12 31 2013 30 47 103
2012 288
196 163,900
2013 30,219
31,452 110,250
CED
51
36
2013 30
31,452 456 2013
20,816 10.33 2013 10,636 22.69

786
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2012 30 2013 30
$ ® 3 -
4 (13)

$ @ s (13)

2013 30 2013 30 2014
30 0.84
2013 31 2013 31 2014
31 0.84
2012 12 31 2013 30
2013 2b/3
5 2013 30

8.1

2013
2 2013 30
10
2013 10 18
35 30 2013 10 21
2013 12 31

2013 12 5.8
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ACUCELA INC.
BALAMCE SHEETS
(in thousands)
[hecember M,
o i

Assels
Cument assets:
Cash und coah cqpuEvalemls cveerrrnsnssrrsnrssssrrnnrnssrsassinsrsnnnnrsnss #5060 $16639

[ o i T P e g e S N ek eyl LT YO P I e APy 0357 6927
Restrictod inveslimenlt . .. ....oeinainnaaseiansseanisnasssnnsanaisasinnnnan — 5,040
Accounts receivalde from collaborations with arelated party .. ..o vvonnrnnen.s 12251 §, 700
Dralmrrnd IoE BB . o o i e e e e b A A e 507 T70
Prepaid expenses and other Cument D55el8 . . .cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiaaaiiiaans 484 1.521
LT LT P (e R e e P 32350 29566
Property and equipment, net .. ..o oo iiiiiiaiiiaaaan e L R A 1,360 1,143
Restricted long-lerm investiments . ..o oo B — 750
Long-tems delermed 1 A8 & vvescvimsvassmsm s s s s i seas drseseas ieates sris 6,39] 3,895
Deefermed ofTeringe 00818« 2 veeisncasinsnnssannssnnanan (ot iy o ATt T hrns 5846 1199
EHNET H58CER 42 vsmnnrsnnensnmanssneanssaanssnsnsonsnnssnsnsanserannrnsanns 590 471
B E T L R ey e e i e e P T PSRy A L4149 S47.024
Linbilities and sharcholders' equity
Current laabilines:
Current matursitics of contingently convenible debd, relased party - . ... 5 MLTHS 8 6500
ACOUNER PRYBIIE o s s cin b smn oo s bt rana B e b mts & Eae s ann B o bk hds & AR S 2684 735
T T TR T e g e PR AP NI O e AR S i et 1,798 309
Aconied COMPENSIION - ... ccuuiniacaaaicaaasaciabonassinnsasanincansanan 1635 2413
Deferred revenue From collaborations with orelabed panty ... ..o — ST
Drelerred rent and lease incentives .. oo veniinnnrinnaes A s RER AN — 249
Total current Labilities .. ..o i iii i imiie i aiiai i cmasa e 16,882 13,576
Comuniinents
Long-term defermed rent, lease incentives, and others . oo iiiniiiiiiaiiiiaa. 338 k81|
Long-term deferred revenve from collaborations with o related party ... ... ....onan. 2.0 2HK}
Long-1erm contingently convertible debt, related pany . ....covnieiiiaiiiiniinanas 1235 5. 5000
Toaal bong-teem liabililies . oo iiiiiiiiiciaaeercaiiaaaas 1773 T.841

Shurehobders” equity:
Convertible prefered stock, no par value, 2,453 shares authariecd:
Series A, no par value, 2,734 shares authorized, issued, and owlstanding

(liguadmsen value of 32051) ... ..o i i it ian i ia i anaa 2,051 2051
Series B, no par value, 17,900 shares authorized, issued, ad outstanding
(liguidntion value af $I3A25) . coociiaiiiiniaiasiiaiisisnaasannsnaa 13387 13,387
Series C, no par value, 31,818 shares authorized, 11,807 shores issoed and
outstanding (liquidation value of SI2988) o . oL L. L Ll.. 12,771 12,771
Commen stock, no par value, G000 shares suthorized; | L899 and 11,910 shares
issued and outstanding ns of December 31, 2001 and 2012, respectively .. ........ 3133 3192
Additional pasd-in capital . ...l cieiieii e s s s s i aaas 1.441 1065
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... oo o A e R i) —
Accumulied defich ... o i s e e e e e e (11.937)  (7,759)
Total sharcholders” equity ... .. A R A YLETCRe e X440 25607

Total limbilitics and sharsholders’ equity ... cvveiiniarinnsnssnsnsssnsrsnnrnranas 41495 $4T.024

Sew nocompanying moles 1o financial statements,
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ACUCELA INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{in thousands, except per share daia)
Yeur Ended
Decembar 31,
il 2012
Revenves from collaborations with arelated panty .. ... oo (X226 546424
Expenses:
Rescarch amd developmvent .. ..ooouoi o i s e s 4181 31604
Greneral mnd administralIVE .o soueoy s pus s st g s shis e s aa viais 6174 T.IB7

B L S PRTB s | o~y i . & ] |
ErpOuRres EOuTE CRIETRERIIRN: oy g o 0, 1 o 3460 T.033

Chher income (expensa |, net:

T T 21 27
TR PR s 3 b b b e b e B e e e (143) {135)
Crihier incomee (exXpensel, BEL oo i ii s i e i e 39 {97}
Total other expense. BEl ... .o uu 0 iues i s s iiaa i iasaat s ia e HE"J _1_2-1];3}
Trecorme bedame IMEomse BIE L L .00 00 s e e e e e e 3. THA RIS
Income tax benelil (EXPERBE] . ui v uinsiiaaaeisaasrasaatiaianiasianastasansais 2AB0  (2.647)
T I L e e T M S Rt e it 6,200 4,178
MNet incomie sitributable o pamicipating secrifies .. ..o 0o e i e 4584 1056
et income sttributable o common sharehodders . ooy e e £ 1682 § 1,022
Met income per share attributable o commen sharcholders
- A P £ 04 5 009
L £ 04 5 009
Weighted average shanes used to compute net ineome per share attributable o common
shareholders:
T T T L T LT I T poupon TR | P r T ¥ . .1
T R A R L P SR A 12045  ]2.158
Prov fonmin ned income per share attmbutablbe to common shareholders
- T g A T A P P I 5 s
IRluted fumamehiedd ] ..o e e £ 06

Weighted averige shares used 1o compute pro forma nel income per share attributable to
cominon stareholders:
Bt (UMY o v woa 4wk n i db i o e 0 26,351
DRluted (UBDURHEEY + s v vviiidan owa b v b bt i b e e 26608

Se¢ accompaniying poles 10 fnanclal stlements,
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ACUCELA INC,
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCONE
{in thousands)

Yeur Ended December 31,

21 2012
MEEIBEhE © o e s e B R s S S e e T § 6266 5 AITE
Chher comprehensive income:
Met unrealied gain O SECUNMIES ... o0 e e sia s arraraaia i n g iaa 28 6
Comprehensive SOOI | . ... ai v iansiiiaaasrssdsrasans tarasisiinsasiasias 5 6294 5 4084

See accompanying nobes 1o finoncial statements,
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ACUCELA INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{in thousands}
ewrs Emided
- T aly -
LB T
Cash Mows from operating activities
Net income «oooues . v AR T et i 1+ - AN
Adjustments o mmm:!l: nd Incoe Iu l:l n::tsh provided by operating activities:
Dreprecintion and amortization . ....oo00iiiias e T e g e e TA9 Ak
Amortization of deferred MBoNENE CoBS . . 0oov i iii it iiieiii it es 12 1
Lass from the disposal of fixed asscis . ....o0n. — T
Siock-based compensation .. ..., . FAECAPSIIERT G T B2 581
ﬁmﬂlmtlnndpmnﬁunﬂdmnumun mu:h:’t.uhlc su:runl:lcﬁ 193 7
Deaferred taxes . (2.632) 2434
Chonges in trp-:rm:ng I:|.15|:1'i nn:l Iluh‘llltlc-:.
Accounis reccivable from collaborations with o relaled party ... o.o0oooe o (5.154) 1,551
Prepaid expenses and other coment asseis .. oo oiioiiiis s iiiiiiiiiiies 510 (1,037}
P R S A I TP 1,057 {1.945)
Acruod TabIIIEs « oo ivs samn pvaan inas s pmmnss s sps g en s e {1.318) 1315
Accrood SompPenEBEON . . ooo v ian i i b il R ek 1277 T8
Dicferred rent and lease iMCenIVES «. . ovuvisiriinsriisspisriiisisnrinras (313) 48
Deferred revenue from collaborations with s related party oo oo oiin {557) 570
MNet cash provided by operating activities .o ovvniiiiiiinirrii s s e 437 11,246
Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchases of marketable securitics uvailable forsale . o.ooviviiiiiiini i (18433} (155800
Muturitics of marketabbe securities available forsale .o.ovv i iiiiii i e 14,506 12,163
Additions 1o property mnd QUIPIIENL . oov v ien b b e i b b b {166) {126}
Met cash tsed in inveEing SeBvIHEE . oo o i iii it ieiiiiiiiniliiberaiiiias (40935 (3.743)
Casly Mowis (rom lnsicing sctivities
Proceeds from bsuance of common s1ock oo vevni i i iiirni i inres : 2
Restrictod investments MeOme . .ovue i ie i e i e i - {13

Paymients for defemed offering ©osls oo svsmiirisnimiriisrsniirrsienronees {556 {613}
Net cash wsed in finincing activibies .oooviiiviiiiniiniiiii e (581 (624)
{Decrease) increase in cash ancl cash equivalents ....ovivir v rsniirinreriiries (4,237) 6,879

Cush sind cosh exuivalents—beghiming ol Vear . .....oovviviriiiiiirriiiiriirriiies 13.097 . 760
Cash and cash expiivalents—end of VEIF .. covviiriiiiinirrriiiieriisibiersiires £ 9760 5 16639
Supplemenial disclosure

Ak pidd DO IAT o e e e R R e e e e 6 5 420
Cash paid Tor income laxes ... .. .. 132 151
Restriction of investments ; r.'-t::ﬂhu:ml ......................................... -— 5750

Sec accompanying moles 1o finuncial stements,

176/271



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E30401)
Oooooooooooon

ACUCELA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Naote L. Summary of Bosiness and Significant Accounting Policies
fherview

Acveela Ine. ("we,” "ouwr” and “us") is a clinical-stage biotechnology company that specializes in
discovering and developing novel therapeutics to tneat and slow the progression of sight-threatening ophthalmic
diseases impacting millions of individials worldwide. We focus on developing omal products based on our
proprictury visual cvele modulation, or YOM, compounsds to sddress o voriety of retinal diseases, primanly sge-
reluted macular degeneration, or AMD, diabetic retinopathy, or DR, amd dinbetic macular edemi, or DME, and
potentinlly Stargardt disease, retinitis pigmentes and retinopathy of prematurity, Our product candidses ane
designed 10 adidress the root eause of these diseases by reducing toxic by-products and oxidative damage as well
s prodecting the retina from light damage. The visool eycle is the Mologicsl conversion of m photon into an
electrical signal in the retina, Our approach to mreatimg and slowing the progression of eye discises utilizes
proprictory compsameds that redoce the speed of, or maodudate, the visual cycle. We believe thot our insight into
mdulnting the visunl ovele combined with oar deep expertise in ophihalmic research and development ennbles
us o develop prodluct candsdotes that, iF approved, shonld preserve vision and provide reliel to patients
wirrldwide sulTermg from the debiliating effects of muliple eye diseases,

In 2000, we recerved Faa Trock desipnation from the LS, Food amld Drug Adminsstotion (“FIAT) Tor
ermxustal hydrochlonde C'Emixestat™), an invesigational oral treatment for dry AMDD,

In 2008, we and Otsuks Pharmsceutical Co., Lid. ¢ Oksukn™) entered imio o definitive agreemen! to co-
develop emixusti, our lead comipounad for dry AMD. Emixustat is entering in Phase 2b/3 climical development in
the Linited Sunes.

In 2000, Crsukn and we entered ine o defimitive agreemen o co-deveblop OPA-GS6, Otauka’s compound
fosr the reatment of glaucomis. OPA-6366 has concluded Phase [ clinical development. We are curmently
evaluating further development sclivilies.

In 2008, Chsukn and we nlso entered into a definitive agreement 1o co-develop rebamipide ophihakmic
suspension (“Rebamipide™ p, Otsuka’s product candidate for the wemment of dry eve. Rebamipide 15 currently in
Phase 3 climicul develogament i the Uniled Sutes.

Use af Extimmates

The preparation of finarcial statements v conformity with sccounting principbes generally scoepted in the
United States of America (CGAAPT) requires management to make estimtes amd wsimptions that aifect the
ameaeis reported in the fnancial statements angd accompanying noles, Actual resubis could differ from these
eslimales,

Unandited Pro Forma Earnings per Share

Upsn the effective date of our nitizl public offering of stock, all of the outstanding contingently convertible
deb and preferred atock, ssaming we mise ot beast 525,000,000 al o price of al keast $3,50 per share, will
somatically conven o shores of common stock, Unowdited proe forma net income per share siinbutable w
common shareholders for the vear ended December 31, 2012 hos been computed o give effect 1o e aotomatic
conversion of the contingently convertible debt and prefermed stock into 3,636,364 and 10,213 867 shases of
commuon stock, respectively, as though these conversions had occurred on the ariginal dates of ssuunce.
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Cash and Cash Equivielents

Cash and cash equivalents include all short-tarm, highly liguid investments with on oiginn] matunity of
three manths or less st the date of purchase. Cash equivalents consist of money market funds, municipal bonds,
ol corporate debt securities,

Inveitments

Investments are composed of commercinl paper, conporme debt secunities, certificstes of deposit, and
povernment-backed secunities. Investments with onginal matunties longer than three months and remaining
mpturities 0f less thomone vear are classified os shor-lerm mvestments, We consider our investments ois
available-for-sabe. Avatlable-for-sale securities are stated ab foir valoe as of each halance sheet dale hased on
market quivies, and unrealized gons and losses are reflected as o net amount under the caption of scoumuloted
other comprehensive loss. Premiunms or discounts arising o acquisition are amostized into eamings.,

We perindically evaluate whether declines in fabr values of our investments below their cost are other-than-
temporary. This evaluation consists of several qualitative and quantitative fuctors reganding the severity and
durathon of the unrealized boss, as well as whether It i more [kely than not that we will hold the investment wiil
recovery of its amortized cost hasis. Realized gains and bosses are caleulated using the specific identification
miethod. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged 1o be sber-than-temporary are recorded within
the statements of income under the caption other income {expensc),

Restricied Investmenis

A portion of our investments are beld as colluteral e secwre our line of credis, These invesiments anc
classified and valsed consistent with owr policy for investiments.

Accowniy Receivable

O sccounts receivable, os of December 31, 2001 and 2012, consist of amounts due from our eollshorations
with Otsuka (a relsted party—See Note 151 There was no allowance for doubtful aceouns for the periods
presenied, as we believe all owstanding amouants will be paid based on our contractual arrangements with Olsoka
and history of successful eollections thereunder and collseral is not required,

Praperty and Equipatet

Property and equipment are recorded o cost, less accunmulated depreciation. We provide for depreciation of
cauipment on a straighi-line basis over an estimnted uscful life of five years, except leaschold improvements
which are smortized on a straight-line basis over the shorer of the lease erm or estimated wseful life of the
mssels.

Expenditures for maintenmnce and repairs are expensed i incurmed.

Lomg-lived wasets held for use ane subject o an inpeimment asessment whenever events or changes in
chrcumsatances indicate that the carrying amount may nof be recoverable. 1§ the carrying value is no knger
recoverable based upon the uadiscounted future cash lows of the asset, the amount of the impament is the
difference between the carrving amount amd the fair valiue of ihe asset. We have recorded po impairment charges
foor the periods presenied,

Revernwe Recogrition

Chir business strategy includes entering into collaloration agreements with phamaceutical companies for
the developiment and commercialization of our product candidates. The tefs of the agreements may inchude
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nonrcfundable heense fecs, funding of rescarch asd development activitics, payments based upon achicvement of
development milestones, paymenis based upon achievement of revenue milestones, or royaliles on product sales.
We rcoognize revenue when four basie eniterio have been met: (o) persupsive evidence of o orrangenment exists;
{b) delivery has occurred or serviees rendered: (o) the Tee is fixed or determinnble; and (db collectability is
reasonably pesuned.

Revenue recognized for the years endad December 31, 200 1 and 2002 consist of amounts dedved from our
collaboration agreemenis wilh Ousuka (a related pasiy—See Note 15).

Mulaple Element Arrangemenis

Owur coollaberiion agreemends are multiple elemeni arrangements thit maist be analvzed o wentify the
delivernbles included in the agreements and determine if the deliverables qualify as sepamie units of accounting,
Deliverables are comsidencd u separate unit of sccounting when all of the following criteria are met: (i) the
delivered item has value to the costomer on a standalone basis and (i) if the arangement inclsdes a general right
of return meladive to the delivered item, and the delivery or performance of the undeliversd ilem 15 considered
prohable and substantially within our control. There pre no rights of returm in owr collphoration agreements.

Armngement consideration is allocated fo the separnte umts of accounting hased on their relative selling
prices. We follow o hiesarchy (o determine the selling price for each unil of sccounting, determining first if teere
15 vendor-specific ohjective evidence (Y SCE jof fair value ithe pnce of which the goods or services ane
regularly =old by us on a stendalone basis). 17 VSOE of far value 15 nol available, third-party evidence (“TPE”™)
of vendors selling similar gomds or services to similarly situnted customers on a stamdolone basis s used 1o
establish fair value. If neither VSOE nor TPE of fair value exisls, wie use our best estimate of the selling price
{“BESP”) for thit unit of sccounting. Our BESP represents the price at which we would trunsact if we regularly
sold the umil of accoumting o o standulone basis.

We consider market comditions and entity-specific faciors when estimating the selling price, Once the
selling price for each unit of sceounting has been established, the consideration received is allocated among the
wnits of secounting based on their relative selling price. wid the applicable revenee recognition crileria are
applied o cuch of the separste units, The amount of amangement consideration allocable to a delivered ilem tha
1% @ separate ualt of accoantmg s limited o amangement considerotion thal i fised or determinable. Payiments
that are contingent upon the ocourrence of future evenis that are nod exclusively within our comrel are excluded
from the iilkocable amangement consideniion witl the contingency ix resolved,

When we bave continiing perfarmance obligsions, revenue s recognized using one of Lwo methods, Where
we are able 10 estimate the totad amount of seevices umler o unil of secounting amld such performance obligitions
are provides on a beskefforts basis, revenoe is recognized wsang o proportional performance nwsdel, Cosis
inewrred to date compared fo lotal expecied costs are vsed 1o detonmine proportisnal performance, s s =
comsicleread to be representative of the delivery of autpils. Chariges in estimates of tolil expecied costs ane
accounted for prospectively as a change in estimates. When we cannaot rensonably estimate the tofal amount of
service Bt st be performed, bul can reasonably estimate when the performance obligation ceases or becomes
incemsequentiol, & tme-based methasd is used 10 recognize revenue, Uinader the time-hasesd method, revenue is
recogmized rutably over the estimated performance periasd of the unit of accaanting, bul pot befare the renmval of
any conlingensies. If wie cannedt reasonably estimale when our performance obligation cither coases or becomes
incenisequentiol and perfunctory, then reventie is ned recagnized wntil we can reasonably estimate when the
performance obligition ceases or becomes mconsequential amd perfunciony, Revenue is then eeognized over the
remining estimled perod of parformance. Significant management jedigment is reguired in determining the
level of effort regguired and the peniod over which we are expected 1o complete our performance obligntions under
ench unil of aceoaniting,
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Sefrstantive Mitestone Pavments

Owr oollaberation agreements contoin subsantive milestones. A substantive milestone i defined as an event
that meets the following conditions: (i) there is subsiantive uncenainty on the date the arrngement is entered
into about whether the event will be achieved; (i) achievement of the event is based in whole, or in pan, on
cither our performance or a specific outcome resuliing from our performance: and (il achievement of the eveni
results in sdditional payment due o s, For a milestone to be considered substantive, dee payment associmed
with our achieverment must have all of the following characieristics: (i) relate solely 1o owr past performance;

(ii) be reasonable relative to all of the deliverables and payment teems in the orrangement: amd (iii) be
commensurate with either our effort required 1o achieve the mibestope or the enhanced value of the delivered
itemish s o result of the milestone achievement.

Subsantive milestone paymens are recognized us revenue upon achicvement of the milestone anly if all of
the previous conditions are met and the milestone payments are nonrefundable, Delermination as o whether a
pay il micels the werementionsd conditivns invidves nunagensent”s judwiment, I0any of the alomenentiomned
coilitions ane not met, e resulling puymici would no e considered a substuitive milesone aml, erefore, the
resuliing payment woubld be deterimined o be pant of the allocable arangement considedation and would be
recognized as revemue as such performance obligations are performed under either the proporional performance
o tine-basod methods, as applicable, and in accordance with the pelicics as described above,

Deferred Revenie

Adnoeints Feceived prior 1o sstisfying the above revenue recognition criteria wre recorded as defemred
FEVETHES,

Ineone Tares

We recognlze deferned 1ax assets and linkilities For the expected Nitire tay conseguendes of events that have
alresdy been recognized i the financiul Matements or tax nelurns, In addition, we have aot recognized the excess
tax benelils saociated with certain shire-based paymeits. Deferred tax Habilities and assets are based i the
difference between linancial statement carrying amoints and dhe tax basis of wsets and liabilities, operting loss,
ainl ik evedil carryforwards and sre measuned wing enncted tax mtes expected to be in effect in the vears the
differences or carry forwands are anticipated o be recoversl or setthed. A viduation allowance is estiblished when
wie believe Ut it is more Likely than sot that beaefits of the deferred tax asets will not be relized.

Stock-Baved Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant dite based on the estimated fuir value of the
ecaity award and s recognited as expense, léss estimated forfeitures, on o stroaght line basis over the requisite
service period, which is generlly the vesting perod, Egpiaty awards to emexecutive employees generally vest
and become exercisahle over a fouryear penod, with 25% vesting after one yeor and 1148 vesting each month
thereafter, Equity awards to exeoutives generilly vest aml become exercisable over a five-year penod, with 206
visling afler one veir wiwd 160 vesting each month thereafier. The fair vilue of esch eqaity award is estinnited on
the dute of grnt wsing the Black-Scholes aption-pricing model. Determining the fair value of stock-based awinds
al the pramt dote requires judgmeit, including estimmting the expected volatlity of our sock, expected 1erm, rsk-
free interest rate, amd expeciad dividends.

Evpeeted Term

The expected term used in our opthon-pracing model represents the period that our stock-based awards are
expecied 1o be outstanding and 13 determined based om the simplificd method. The stmplified method uses o
simple avernge of the vesting and ongingl contractianl lerms of the option, We wse the simplilied method 1o
determine the expected option lerm, sinee our slisck option exercise experience does nol provide o resonable
basis upon which to estimate the expected option lemi.
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Expected Valarilioy

The volatility Fsctor used i our optisn-pricing model §s estimated using comparable public company stock
volutility.

Expected Dividend

We have never paid cash dividends and have no present intention to puy cash dividends in the futwre.
Accordingly. the expecicd dividend wsed in our aplion-pricing mode] is rero.

Rivk-Free Lerest Rete

W base the risk-free interest rate uwsed in our option-pricing model on the implied yicld currently available
on U5, Treasury issued with an equivalert term. Where ihe expected term of our stock-based awards does not
correspond with the term for which an interest rate is quoted, we perform a straight-line interpolation 1o
determine the rate feom the available term maturities.

The air viillue of slock eptions granted for the vears ended December 31, 200 1 and 2012 wais calenilated
using the Bliwk-Schules option-priciee model and applied ihe fol lwing assumptismns:

[ecember 51,
EL a2
Rbek-free imeres ftel . ooveeioaresaionsnareas L 2%-21% 1.0
2 R R e e 6.3 years 6.3 years
Dividend Yl . cvovnsnniisincrarasisasananinn — % — &
Birpeohtgl WOl - v e i s ke E e aa s 65% 5065

Research and Development Costy

Research amd development costs include salanes, fees paid o external service providers and contract
research organizstions 1o conduct research and development activities, laboratory supplies, license fees,
conauliing fees, and iravel. Research and development cosis are expensed as incurred.

Deferred Offering Costs

Exiernad costs we incurred directly annbatable o o future pablic affering, are defermed and recorded s
nenctirrenl dssets and will be charged sgains any proceesds of the future offenng.

Snbzequent Events

Managemen has evaluated events occurring subsequent 1o December 31, 2012, through Moy 23, 2013,
excepd for note 16, as 10 which the date is November 7, 2013, for sceounting and disclosure implications,

MNede 2. Nel Income Per Share

W compute net income per share using the two-class method regquired for participating securitics, Our
participoting securities nclude all series of our convertible prefemred stock, as the holders are entitled o
participate in any dividends prior and in preference to dividends declared or poid on the common stock.
Unshistributed earningzs allocated io these participating securitics are subiracied from nel income in determining
net income attribatable to commen sharcholders,

Basic net income per share (s calculated by dividing net income wtributable o common shircholders by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period. Dilued net income per share is caleulated by
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dividing net income attributable to common shoreholders by the weighted average aumber of shares of the
common stock outstanding and other dilutive securities outstnding during the period. The potential diluiive
shares of sur common stock include the exercise of outstanding stock options that are dilutive. Dilutive securitics
in our diluted EPS calculation do not inelude our contingently convertible debi, which ore convertible upon the
oceurmence of a qualified initial public offering of at least $23.000,0000and $3.56 per share, as defined in the
contingenily convertible debt agreement. As of December 21, 2002, such an event has ot oceurred and
scoondingly the hokders of the contingently convertible debt have no fights 1o our undistribated camings. Upon
such an event, the contingently convertible debt will be convertible into 3636, 364 commen shares, after an
intermediate conversion into Senes C prefemed shares,

The following tables reconcile the numerstor and denominstor used o caleulate diluted pet income per
share for the periods presented (in thousands )y

Veur Ended December 1.

k0 w2
Numerator:
Net income sitribuiable to common shareholders ... % 1682 51022
Denominalor
Weighted-average shores outstanding—basie . ... 11,897 11,901
Drilutive effect of siock opions . ... ..o s 148 257
Weighted avemnge shares outstanding—diloted . .. 12,115 12,158

There were no antidilutive options 10 purchase shares of comman stock outstanding for the penods
presednied.

Unaudited pro forma mei income per share atinbutable 10 common sharcholders for the year ended
December 31, 2012 has been computed 1o give effect o the sutomatic conversion of the contingenily convertible
delst and preferred stock inmo common stock as though these conversions lud oceurred of the beginming of the
fiscal period. The following table sets forth the computation of our unadited pro forma basic and diluted et
income per share during the year endded December 31 2002 (in thousands

Yoear Ended
December A1,
o)z
Mumcrutos:
Ao s i T S 54,178
Interest expense on contingently convertible debt. net of x| . 5
Pro Tormus mel MEomse . . o e e £ 4253
epominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic .. ... .. ... 11,801
Contingently convertible debt—pro forma conversion . .. 1,636
Preferred stock—pro forma comversion ... oo i (LI E
Pro forma weighied average shares outstanding—basic . . 26,351
Diilutive effect of siock options. .. ... ... - oy 257

Prey Formen weighted avernge shanes oatstanding—diluted |

MNote 3, Concentration of Risk

Dhiring the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 and as of the periods then ended, all of sur revenues
ainl aceounts receivable were detived from the eollaboration agreements with Otsuka,
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Note 4, Segment Reporting

We operate in one segment, pharmaceutical product development. All of our significant assets are located in
the United States, Duning the years ended December 30, 2000 amd 2002, all revenue during the yeur was
generated in the United States.

Mate 5, Collaboration and License Agriemeits
Embrastes Collaboration

In 2008, we entered into a definitive agreement with Otsuka 1o co-develop and commercialize emixusel,
our compound. for the dry form of AMD and for other potential indications in the United States, Canada, and
Mexico (“Shared Ternitory™ ). Under the agreement. we retained all rights in Europe, South America, Ceniral
America, the Coribbean, and Africa (" Acocels Territory™ ), and Otsula acquired the exclusive development and
commercialization nights o the compound in Asia, the Middle East, and selected markets in the rest of the world
(“Crsuken Termibory ™) Otsukn paid us o 85 000000 nonrefundable wp-front lcense fee opon its entry into the
ARTECLRAL.

Under the agreement, Ctsukn sgreed to fund oll development sctivities in the Shared Termisory through
Phuse 2, ap 1o $40,0060000, If the Phase 2 development costs exeeesd S40,000,000, Otsukn could have, at its sole
discretion, either (1) terminsted the agreement o (i) continued the sgreement and share equally with usall Phase
2 development costs in excess of SA0000,000, [n 200 1, the cost of development activities exceeded S40,000,000,
ol Cisukn ngreed o continue the sgreement and equally share development costs with s, Phase 3 cods are to
be shared equally by Oasoko pned us under the agreement. In wddition, under the agreement, we have the potentinl
o receive develspment milestones totding S52, 500000, The co-development portion of the ngreemen! is
governed by a Joant Development Commiltes (C107 ) We may enm development milestones s {ollows;

i Initial Indication—355, 000,000
oo 85000000 upon initation of 0 Phase 203 clinical irial in the United Siates

b, S5000,000 upon initistion of o Phase 3 clinical trind in the United Sutes, or the filing of a New
Drug Application ("NDA™) with the FIDA in the United States, if a second Phase 3 clinical trigl is
nodt needed

o B15.000,000 upen [ling of a NDA with the FOA in the United Stages
do S20KH, K upon receipt of approval by the FIMA of an KDA in the United States

e STOEKALONKN wpon receipl of approval by the regulitory sbority af 3 marketing approval
application in Japun

i, Secomd Indication—3$27, 500,000
a, 5000000 upon initaion of a Phase 3 clinkcal erial in the Untled Swies
b, 87500000 upon filing of an NIYA with the FIDA in the Unibed Siates
e SO wpon receipt of approval by the FIMA of an NDA in the United States

d 5000000 upon receipt of approval by te regulmony suthority of o marketng appeoval
application in Japan

Usicler the agreement, Ctsuka will fund our shane of the Phase 2 and Phose 3 development costs in the form
of & secired promissory note. The promissery mote provides that (a) intenest will acemie daily and be ealculated
o the basis of 260 days per year amd be payable on all amounts sdvanced e us from the date of advance until
paal ki Fulls (b) wipaid interest will compound avually;, and (e) the applicable interest rate will be adjusted

183/271

Oooooooooooon



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E30401)
Oooooooooooon

quiarterly to neflect the then-effective rate equal 1o the three-monath London InterBank Offerad Rote (*LIBOR™) in
ihe "Money Rates” column of The Wall Street Jowrnal as of the first business day of cach calendar quarter, plus
3% and (d} all amounts are payable in U.5. dollars. The agreement includes a secanity interest agreement that
granis Cisuka o first priority inberest on owr inieresis in net profiis amd royaliy payments, and on our imeresis in
ownership of the related collaboration compounds and eolloboration products and the underlying intellectual
property righis, both in the Shared Territory and ile Acoceln Territory.

The loan is repayable only in the event that proceeds are generated by any fwiure product sales under the
collshoration agreemient or by the sale or license of collwboration compounds and collaboration products
developed under the agreement outsisde North America and Onsuka’s sole territory.

As the agreement contmns elemnents of funded development, we evaluated the agreement 1o determine if our
obligathoi 1o Oraka under the secured promissory note showld be secounied for as a lability 1o repay o koan or as
an obdigatian o perfiorm cotrciul services, To conclude than a labalivy b repay o kn does msl exist, the
transfir of the Anencial fsk involved with reseusch and develogament from us 10 Otsuka must be substintive and
genuing, We have determinad that our ohligation (o Chsuka shoald be sccounted for as an obligation o perfiarm
coiitniciial services becinise repaymeil depends solely ai the revults of develupaneant having luluie ecunoimic
benefit. Consequently, amounts received from Ctsuki for our share of development custs under the sgreement
are recognized as revenue, Through the year ended December 31, 2012, we liad recognized revenue of
approximately 315,400,000, which is contingently repayable as described above. As of December 31, 2002, the
contingently repayable funding s acoried $372000 of interest, which i= contingently repayable along with tee
abave.

Upon commercialization, we may exercise our oplion 1o co-promole in the Shared Terntory on a coumry-
by-country hasis. In markeis where we opt w0 co-promote the product. Orsuka and we equally share all expenses
ol profits from sales of the product in the Shared Termitory. If we dio pot elect 1o co-promote in a country o
countries in the Shared Temritory, Ovsuka shall pay us rovalties on the snnual ppgregate net sales of collaborution
prosducts in the country of coumries in the Shared Terriwry for which we did not elect (o panicipate in co-
promadion. Buch party shall pay the other party o royaly of 2% on snnoal sepregate net sales of collshbortion
prostucts in their sofe territonies. In addition, we hove the potentiol 1o receive net sales milesiones totading
S 175,000,000, The co-promotion smangement is governed by a Joint Commercialization Committee (10"
The milestones are as follows:

1. Al bndicitions
d S25.000,0000 upon reaching S250,000,000 in agpregme anmual worldwide salles of all colleboration

proxfucis

b SS0.000,000 wpon reaching S300000,000 in aggre gae annual worldwide salles of all collaboration
products

e ST KK upon reaching S0 (80K (00000 in aggregate annual worldwide sales of all
collaharation proxdocts

The apreement sl includes o three-year research program {the “Research Program™), the purpose of which
vas to identify a second indication for the kead collaborative compound and 1o conduct development on a backup
compound for the colloborative compound. During the theee vears of the Research Progrum, which ended in
200 1, CHsuka paid us 55,000,000 per year, pavable on a quarterly basis, The agreement also provides Otsuka with
o right of first negotintion o license new compoumnds discovered or developed by us (independent of the
collabortion sctivities) during the sgreement term.

Chur agreement with Otsuka i a multiple elemem armngement, and we hove determined that the elements
within the srrongenent consist of the license, the Research Program, and research and development services.
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The license granted o Otsuks was determined o be o soparate unil of accounting because it has value w
Chsuka on o standafone basis. Because Otsuka may license and develop the intellectual propeny independent of
the development or rescarch program services that are 1o be provided by us, we condocted o met present volue
valuation of the license, and il was determined that the estimated standalone selling price for ihe license an
inception of the agreement excecded the armangement consideration neceived for the license fee. Since the value
mssigned to a deliversd element cannot exceed the arrangement consideration, the arrangement consideration of
55000, (00 due and paid upon execution of the agreement was assigned to the license.

W have determined that the activities associated with development meet the caterion for a separate unit of
scooumting, simee these services have value io Otsuka on a standalone basis. BESP is based on the Company's
analysis of the value of the services provided and consideration of the fees charged by thind party vendors for
similar development services and represent our BESP, Revenune from development efforis is recognized as
services are performed. In the years ended December 31, 200 | and 2002, we recognized 517,775,000 and
S19.320 000, respectively, of revense associaled with development activities.

We have determined thal the achivities associsied with the Besearch Program meet the oriterion for i
separate unil of acoounting. since these services have valoe to Chsuka on o standalone basis, The types of services
comlemplated under the Resemrch Progrm may be pedfornmed by a shind party. W hove determined thal the fees
charged for the research serviees are competitive with the price other third-party vendors charge for ssmilar
research services, Our BESP af the selling price for the Research Program was $15.06L,0000, which eenls the
agreement consideration. Revenae from the research activibies was recognized under o proportional performanee
model. In 200 1. we recognized 53,8000 of revenue sssocialed wilth research activities. The rescarch perd
enbed dunng 2001,

W evitlusted the development and net sales milestones n the arrangement and dedermined that they each
mieel the eritenin of amilestione under ASC 605-28, Revenue Recogniiion-Mileitone Meiliod, We recognize
consideration that is contingent upon achievement of o substamtive milesbone in its entirety in the perisd in which
the milestome is achieved. No development or net sakes milesones were achieved during the vears enbed
December 2, 2001 or 200 2 or the three months ended March 21, 2002, During the three moniths ended
March 31, 2013, we received and recognized s revenise the $5.000U00 millestons payment associoted with the
initiation of the Phase 203 clinical trial,

RBebamipide Collaboration

In 2008, Chsuka ancd we enterea inte w defmitive agreement b eo-devebop rebamapide, Oisika®s proprietary
compounsd for the reatment of dry eve, Under the sgreement, the parties sigreed 1o collaborite in ihe clinical
development efforts for rebamapide in the United States, Ovaka pabl us a 32,000,000 ap-Tfront payment anl,
wnder the apreentent, we have the poteniial o eceive climcal development milestones fotalig S30,000,000 and
moyalties on net sales of the procust in the United States and the Buropean Union, Devebspment milestones are as
foallows: 1) S5, 000,000 wpon initkation of a Phase X climcal inal; (2 5500008 upon filing with tee FDA of an
NI for the prosfuct for the plin indication; and §3) $20,(0006K) upon regulatony approvil of the prostuct for the
plan mdication in the United States. Under the agreement, (isuka shall be responsible for all ¢hnical
development anild commerciahization expenses, Upon regulitory filing, the agreement provides that the partics
may pegotiale the terms under which we may co-promaote rebamipide with Otsiika in the United States,

We eviluated the apreement and determined that the clinical developrent activities represented the only
delivernble under the armangement. Revenue from chinical development efforts is recogmized as services are
performed. During the yeurs cribed 200 1 pncd 2002 wie recogized 55,869,000 and £13.987 000, respectively, of
revenaie associted with the rebumipide climical development activities. We evalusted the development
milestones wnder the agreement and determined that they each meet the enterin of a substantive milestone. We
recognize consideration that is contingent uwpon achievement of o substantive milestone in its entirety in the
period in which the niilestone is achieved. In 2002, we received and recognized as revenue the 55,000,000
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milestone pavment associsded with the initiation of the Phase 3 clinkcal trinl. No development milestones wene
schicved during the year ended December 31, 200 1.

Dhsuka's $2,000, K0 wp-front payment o us is subject b refund upon insolvency, material breach, or
termination of Dr. Kobeta's services 1o us. Due 1o the refund provisions in the agreement, we classified the
£2.000, (KK} paymeni as deferred revernie at December 31, 2001 and 2012, When the approprizte refund
provisions are satisfied, we will recognize the payment os revenoe,

CPA-6566 Colluboration

I 2000, Chsuka and we entered inte a definitive agreement o develop OPA-6566, Otsuka’s progrictary
compound for the treatment of glueoma. The agreement grants us an opi-in right 1o co-develop and co-promeote
OPA-6566 in the United States. Until we exercise our opt-in nght, @isuka will have responsibibity for directing
development activitics and costs. Upon our exercise of the opi-in nght, Otsuka will grant us additnonal opt-in
rights, which include: { 1) the night to co-develop and co-promose OPA-6566 for ophthalmolegical indications in
the United States other than for glovcoma: 2] the right 1o co-develop and co-promaote new formulations of OPA-
6566 for glavcoma in the United States: amad (33 a night of first negotiation to co-develop and co-promote of ler
mdenosine As receplor agonist compounds for the reatment of ophthalmologie disenses in the United Stales.

We evalualed the apreement and determined that the development activities under the agreement
represented the anly deliverable under the arrmngement. Bevenue from development activities 1s recognived os
services e performed. During the vears ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, we recopnized S6,689000 and
S8, 108,000, respectively, of revenues in performisnce of the agrecment

Conttnued Involvement of the CEC

The Company”s three collaboration armangements with Oisuka require the continuing involvemen of our
CEQ, Dy, Byo Kubotic In the event of the deparivre of Dr, Kubola from the Company or a chinge in his robe or
responsiilities with the Company. the ammangements are subject to fermination, at the option of tsoka. For each
apreement. this provision expires upon the approval of the NDA for the first incication in the United States.

Mote 6, Investments and Cish and Cash Equivalents
liivestingnts wid cash amd cosh egquivilenis as of December 31, 2001 and 2012 amsisted of ihie following {in

thowsandsy:
Diecember 31, 3l |
Capuss Unevabiad
At ped Huddding Huleding Fair
[ Eiimn Losses Vadue
Types of securily:
Commerclal paper «vvsvvrvirisrsriviiaaes 3 LIZE §  — 5 — 5 1025
Corporate debl securllies ..o vvvviiiieinrin 1.502 - [ §] 1501
Covernment-hacked secunities ....0v e 1,408 - — | 008
Munbeipal Bosds . .oouniiii e B —_ - BO0)
Centificates of deposil oo vvvviorrriivreiaris a3 - (3] 6,228
Money market fumds ... ..o e 1691 - - T
ERARY 0 o i L0 A ot 0 b 274 — — 274
519423 8§ — 5 @) 30017
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Drecenaber 4. 202
taross Unrendined
Holding  ilobding Falr
Amortized Cost Gmine L Vilue

Types of security:
Commercial paper - ... - cccoeciasciansnes s Ty 21 5 £ TO8
Corporate debt securifes ... oooivvinnonn 59649 - [y 5967
Municipadl bonds ..o Loooiiaiiiaiiails 1,225 — — 1,225
Certificates of deposit . ... ... A 6,500 1 — 6,50
Money morket fumds .. ..o oL ool 14,306 — — 14,306
T2EEI e bned 0 e A Bl R B 528 — — 528

529,325 512

w

{ 519,325

ra
i

As of December 31, 2002, $750,000 of certificates of deposit muture in grester un one yeas, but less than
pwer years. All other invesiment securities held at December 31, 2001 and 2012 moiure within 12 months.

Murket valses were determinest for each individual security in the investment ponfolio, The declines in
value of these investiments are primanily related to chonges in interest rates and are considered 0 be lemporry in
nature, We evaluate, smong ather things, the duration and extent o which the fair value of @ security is less than
its cost, the financinl condition of the 1ssuer, and our imtent to sell, or whetlser it is more likely than net we will be
requires to sell the security before recovery of the amomized cost basis. W do not consider these investmients o
be other-thun-temporanly impaired s of December 31, 2002,

Naoe 7. Fabr Value Measurements
Fiancial tissets ire chssified wnd disebosed in one of the following three categores:
Level 1—0nioted prices bn sctive markels for identical sssets and Habllities,

Level 2—Inputs other than Level | thai are observable. eiiher direcily or indirecly, such as quoted prices
fioor samiilar assets or linhilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that e
observable or can be cormoborated by observable market dotu for substantially the fall ferm of the assels
or liabilities, and

Level 3—LUnohservable inputs in which there is little or no market data svalable, which requines us 1o
develop oar own assumptions.

Chur financinl asscts measured at fair volue on a recurming basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2002 were as
Follows (in thousands j:

Drecemiber 31, 2011
Lovel 1 Lavel 2 Ravel X Tutal
Cash equividenms:
Moncy mnrkel fumds . ..y vee i i $78 & — §— 5 7601
Covernment-backed securibies . ... 00eenonraanns — Qs — QoS
Municipad Boods . .. .oiiiiaiiiaiisaniiiaaas — B8 = HOHb
Totnl cosh equivalents: ... coviisrsrinstsarersissins 7641 1,795 — G456
L g e b e e i L — i
Toanl cash and cash equivalents: .. ... 0eveiinaaa. $7965 51795 $— 39760
Investments:
Commercial Paper ... .ovriinr i, B — $ 1,028 $ 1,125
Corporate debl seCurilies ... ovvsviesiniiasans - 1,501 - 1,501
Government-backed securities ... ..o .0 0., _— 03 — S0
Certificates of BePOSIt 4 1o 1 vaeveraronninaunnanns — 6228 — 6228
£ $90357 4 % 9357
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December 81, bl
Lewrd 1 Loevel 2 Levell & Total
Cash equivalents:
Money morket funds .. ... ..o i S 8 — — £14,306
Mupieipol bomde. o ooy yrasaivos diee s - 1,225 - },225
Corporate debi securiibes . ... o iiiiaiiaa. - 586 - 586
Tl cosh eqpuivabents: .. ... 14,306 LB —_ 16,117
CARML i e s s e e e 528 — — 528
Todnl cash and cash equivalents: .. ........o0ic0aa00 51483 5 LB — S1b,645
Tnvestments:
Commercial paper . ....ieiiiniisiaiisiaaaes B — 5 T8 — £ T8
Corporate debt securities o .o.oou e — 5,381 — 5,381
Certificates of deposit - o ovieieiarenesansaas — 6,501 — 6,500
5 — S12680  $— 512,680

Chir level 2 finuncial assets imclude government-backed secunties, municipal bonds, commercial paper.
corprorate debt secunties, and cemificates of deposits, These level 2 financin] asseds are valued using pocing
models that consider the most relevanl observable mpots ivailable for simalar secanties. meliding such items as
reported trimbes, brokerfdealer quotes, bids, offers, snd yields,

The carrying amsamis reflected m the balance sheets for acoounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate Fair value due o their shori-tenm mafure,

W had 12,000,000 of contingently comvertible debd with o related poarly oulstanding os of December 31,
2001 and 2002, At Decembser 31, 200 1 and 200 2. the fair value of the notes payable is $4 100000 anad
ST 000,000, respectively, Our valuntion analysis was prepored using o two-step process thal fnittally estimated
the fuir value of the entire company, wsing a discoamied cash Now model, amd next allocated this value to the
varpous debt aned equity securities we have issued, Valoe wos allocated (o (e contingently convertible debt as the
result of the preferences and conversion feateres of the notes under our valuation maodel of the Company, which
is basgd on the Black-Scholes option pricimg model. This model considers overall value of the entity. ligubdation
preferences. risk free rabes, volatiliny rides of peer companies, and time e s conversion event. Chir valuation of
the contimgenily convertible debi is comsidered o be Level 3,

Mote B, Property and Equipient
Property and équipanent as of December 31, 200 1 and 2012 consast of the fillovwding (i thousands):

Deeembur 3,
il 2002

Labormorny equipmenil .o coviviovariirisirniirisnans $£2373 5$21aM4
Lenzelwld bopeavemeils oo ovverrr i irrinineiibnseni 1740 1808
OfTice Murmiure ancd CouIpment . ....ovvieronriiioners 411 432

4,524 4,604
Less accumiilated depreciation and amostization . ... ...... (16 (AT
Property ol GUEPmEnl nel . ..o iii s rn i i S L3600 S 43

The depreciation am smortzation expense recorded for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2012 was
LTRGANNI el Salﬁ-fl.lllll I"I-‘h[ﬂli-'ﬂ!.}'-
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Note #. Contingently Convertible Debi with Eelated Party

Cin May 29, 2006, we completed a privete plaicement of unsecured promissory naodes in an aggregate principal
amou of 3 1EHKLIKD, The terms of the initial issuance and subsequent extensions of these noles is outlined o

EDINETOOOO
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follows:
Initial lssuange
Principal 323000 5323000 55, 300,000
Insue Date May T4, 206 May 24, MK Miay 249, 2006
Maturity Dote August 3], 200K June 3, 200 Movember M, 2012
Interest Rate KL | AW [EE
Imierest Payahle Ul Marurity Upon Marunity 1Fpesn Bty
First Extension
Princigal S1.234.5400 [ s2msom 53 250,000 S5 SO0, 000
Issie Dhate August 3], 2E Jume Hb, 2010 MNovemher 8, 2012
Maturity Date Augusg 3], 2010 June M, 2001 Febquary 28, 2014
Iwierest Rate 1.20% (ELo 0.04%
Imterest Payable Paid throagh August 21, 2010 Paidd through Jane 30, 200 | | Poid throwugh November 30,
2002 Upon Matarity
Secoml Hxtension
Princigal 51,234,090 | s201500 53,250,000
lasae Diate Augast 3], 2010 Bune 30, 20111
Maturivy Dinte Augus 3,200 Jume 1, 2002
Inicrest Raae 1% nATE
lwicrest Payable Paid ihrough Augusa 31,2011 Paid through June M0, 2012
Third Extension
Principal s2480 | 610,050 S5m0 S3. 250,00
Ixsme Date Ampusi 31, 2001 Aagust X, 2011 June 3, 2012
Musturity Date Auguss 31,2013 Aopust 3], 2012 Jume b, N E
Inierest Rote 0.96% through August 31, 2002 0% 095%
L through August 1, 2003
Imigresi Payable Paid ihromgh Augusa 31, Paid through | Paid throwugh June 30, 2000 Y
2012; 2 vear prepaid ot first | Auguss 3], 2012
anniversary
Fourth Extension
Primcipal F200 5.0
Insise Date Mapusy 31, 2012
Mlaturity Date Auapust 3], 2011
Interesi Rade 0,950
Interest Payable Pl through
Aagusa 3, 2013

Contingently comvertible debt due in ane year or less of 36,500,000, cormresponding prepaad inlerest expense of
S36,000, anc corresponding interest payable of 54,000 huve been classified os current natunities of contingently
comvertible debd, prepaid expense, and current liahilities, respectively, as of December 31, 2002, 55,500,000 of
contingently convertible debt due in excess of one vear has been classified as long-term contingently comvertible debt.
The notes contain provisions for autematic extension. We will be notified within 20 days from the muturity date if the
notes will be ntomadically extended.

The contingently convertible debt smulomatically comvent intoe shares of common stock upon the closing of a finm
cominitment widerwritien public offering at a price of mot less than 53 50 per shaie and aggregate nel proceeds of sot

18

9/271

Oooooooooooon



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E30401)
Oooooooooooon

less than 325,000,000, The number of sharcs isseed spon conversion s determined by dividing the principal of
ihe note by $3.30, which is subject to adjusiment for ony subsequent recapitlizaiions, siock combinations, steck
dividends. or stock splits,

I the event of a liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of oir company, our assets and funds shall be
distributed such that the sote holders are paid all outstanding priecipal and imerest under the dotes in the same
prioeity as the halders of our prefierred stock we paid the liquidation distribwtion prior and in preference o sy
distribution to the holders of common stock IF the assets available for distribution amoag the halders of preferred
stock and notes are insufficient o permit the payment to such holders of their respoctive lguidation preference,
then the assets and surplus funds that remain legally available for distribution shall be distributed raably smong
the hokders of prefermed steck and mstes in proportion o the preferential amount each halder would otherwise be
emtitled to peceive.

In the event that a sale of our comgany or o sale of substantially all of our assets, or upon @ ceriain merger or
consalidition ransaction, prior to the materty date, the mde holders have the following options:

*  The entire unpaid principal amounts of the notes and pecmed interess thereon are paid upon the closing
of such ransaction,

+  The notes e redeemed for an amount i cash equad 1o e anwumt b which the note bolders would
have b entitled pursuant o the terms of such trunsacteon i, nstend of the notes. the note olbers
helel i number of shares of common siock as caleulated in the samie manner us the conversion upon
public offering.

#  The notes are converted into shares of Series C prefermed stock. The number of shares issued upoi
conversion is detcrmined by dividing the wnpaid principal of the notes by the original issue price of the
Series C preferred stock of S1.10.

The contingently convertible dabl includes an embedded conversion fenture, in the event that we are sald
whach requires bifurcation aml separate accounting @ i derivative, This denvative is recorded at its fair value,
with changes in Mair value recognized as odher income or expense over the period it is outstanding. The fair value
of this devivative since inception las been immaterial,

5B1 Holdings, Inc, (o related pany b, the holder of the notes and one of our sharehalders, received payment
foor mterest on the unsectned promisory notes of S63, (00 and 540,000 10 the vears ended 200 | and 2002,
respectively, The representalive direcior, president, amd chiel executive olficer of SBI Hoklings, Inc. is o member
ol e gl of derectors (the “Boand™ )

Note 10, Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2002, we aad net operating loss (*NOL™) carmyforwands of $2,7 38,000 ans rescarch and
development tax credit carryloewands of $1.625,000, The camry forwards are available bo offset future tux
limbsilities. The NOL carryforwunds expine between 2023 to 2029 and the rescarch and development tax credits
expire between 2022 jo 2031, Utilizstion of net openiing losses moy be subject to ownership change limitations
estahlished by Internal Revenue Cosle (*TRC™) Section 242, The annual limitation may resali in the expimtion of
nel operating loss carryforwards before they can be uiilized.

Drzferred tox assets arise from lemporary differences between financial and tax reponting. We will establish
o valuation allowance if either it i more likely than not that the deferred s assets will expire before we are able
to realize their benefits or the fulwe deductibility is uncenain, Periodically, the valoation allowance is reviewed
el sl justed based on mansgement s assessmients the realizability of deferred tax assets, During the year ended
Drecember 21, 201 1, we reduced our valustion allowance to zero because we believe that it is mose hikely than
ned that owr deferred tax assets will be realized, A reduction in the valuation allowanee of 52,632,000 is reflecicd
as & reduction o income tax expense,
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Dreferred oy assets are as follows (in thousands):

Drelerred tax assets
Net opernting Joss corryforwands . .oouviiaviaiiansrianieaes  SLTH 5 Bl
Research ard development {R&D tax credit comylomwands .., .., 1,600 1,625
Delermel TEVOIIBE oy 4 o6 aia s doba i m vk w00 o g b 0 g w8 L] 60
R R R T SRRl S T A G L e 662 A5G
ERETEATOt TEME 4 iviwa 4 550w b om0 w0 o0 i w0 (f] 192
LT g R S T R R L R L N 152 363
Property s SQUIPIIEIL +0 o0 teareisrrioniansterneisitansns 54 11K
Teaal defemed 1% A88EL . . .0 oo iansrisrsoramimssbransdrrasens STAME %4065
Keponed as:
Current defermed i asset .o e 5 3 %5 Two
Long-terny deferred X BRREL . ..o iine i tin s it e i Es 6,591 1,895
7008 %4665

For the penods presentedd, we hid taxable income that was offset by the utilization of the net operating loss
corryforwards, In the vears ended December 31, 2011 wnad 20012 we were subject 1o the allernative minimum tox,

The components of te tax expense (henclit) are as follows (in thowsands):

¥owrs Eniled Deceinbier 31,

20 22
CUITERL 2 v s rre s rannr s raar s raas s L] 152 8 1649
Delerretl o s S e e R A e Eaebile i (2,632) 2478
Tl S T e T bRl e 5 (24800 § 2,647

The reconciliation of the statutory federnl ineome tas rate o our cffective ineome tos mle is as follows:

YWear Ended Dicember 31,
2011 mil

Y I o L i e L e e 340K BN
Reduction of the valuation allowapee . ... ... ... ... (54,1 LIN1]
Utilization of loss carryforwnnds . ..o oo ..o L0 (48.1) 0.0
EHBEr, ML o e e iz 4.3

EMective L% FAle ., . cvver ivesremrar s brarats R {65.0F) IR 8%

We file our income tux return in the ULS, federal junisdiction, We are no longer subject o U5, federal tux
examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2008, However, the Intemal Revenue Service [(“IRS™ ) coubd
sdjust certain umused tax afinbuates camied forward from tax yvears prior o 2008, Based on the junsdictions in
which we operate, we ane nod subject to state income taxes,

Wi recognize the tix benefit from an oncertain tax position only if it is mdne likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the techmical merits of the position,
The tax benefits recognized in the financial sutemens from seeh o position are measured based on the Lrges)
bemefit that has a greater than 50% likelibood of being realized upon ultimae setlement. However, thene are mo
miaterial wrecognized tax benelits as of December 31, 2001 and 20012 and as of March 30, 2002 and 2003,
Furthermsene, we do not anticipate any significant changes in our unrecognized tax benefits over the mext 12 months.
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We recogmize interest ond penalies eelated to our liabilines for uncenin fx positions in income tax
expense. However, during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 we did not have any secrued inderest or
penalties associated with any unrecogmzed tax benefits.

Deferred tox wsets do not inclisde RE&ED credits generated for 2002, The Amenican Taspayer Relief Act of
200 2 was signed into low on Janoery 3, 2013, which retroactively extended the R&D Credia back to January 1,
200 2. The effect of 1ax legislotion is taken into sccount in the interim period in which the law was enacted.
Therefore, the 2012 RED credits are not contained in the deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2012, bt will
be included in 2013,

Mote 11, Commitments
Laases

W lense luboratory and corperute office spoce under noncancelable operating leases expiring in 2005, The
lease agreement for the labormtory facility includes one three-yeor renewal options, and the lease for the
corporale office includes one three-yemr renewnl aption. Lease meentives are recognized as defenred rent
leabilities and amertized 1o rent expense over the term of the lease. Minimum nest payments under openriting
leases are recopnized on a straighi-line basis over the term of the lease, including any periods of free ent and
reduced rent,

Fistire mimmimuam lease payments wnder moncancelable aperatmg leases (with initial or remaming lease lemms
in excess of one veary as of December 31, 2002 are as follows:

B A W T N N S A A 5 923,000
IO e e e e LELXLLL
B e L 1 TOLHHY
Total minimom lease pOymemME ... uiisiisiaiinnnas S2.029,(K0

Rent expense was $958, 000 aned $345.000, respectively, in the years ended Decermbser 31, 2000 and 2012,
respectively.

Credir Facility

We maintain o 55.000,000 line of credit for working copatal pirsuont io revolving line of credit node {the
“Line of Credin™). Interest on the Line of Credit scorues, and is dug, monthly either ot (13 at o Muctuating rate per
anmum determmed by the bunk (o be ane and twenty five limsdredihs percent {1,25% ) abave the Daily One
Month LIBOR Rate in effect from sime o time, or (11 at a fixed rate per annum determined by the bank 1o be
one o twenty five hundredihs percent (1.25% ) obove LIBOR in effect on the first day of the applicable Fixed
Rate Term, Any prineipal amount outstanding on the Line of Credit is payable on January 20, 2014, Mo anwuns
wiere oitstanding under the facility as of December 31, 2012, As of December 31, 2012, the borrowing
availabiliny is S4.600,000 due 1o S0, 000 being reserved under the corporste creddit cond program. The line of
crehit and credit curd program are secumed by our restncted mvestment balinces of approximately $5 800000 2x
of December 21, 2012,

Note 12, Sharcholders' Equity
Cormman Stock
W have 60,000,000 shares of commion stock suthorized withom por value,
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Canvertible Preferred Stock

W have 52,452,514 shares of preferred stock authorized without par value, The preferred stock 15 ssunble
in one or more series, each with such designations, rights, qualifications, limitations, and restrctions as the Board
muy determine at the time of issunnce. We have designnted 2.734,334; 17 899.99%; and X1 818,182 shares os
Series A, Series B, and Senes C prefermed stock, respectively, with the following terms;

Conve raies

Exsch share of Senes A ond B preferred stock s convertible at sy time after issmance of the option of the
hodider into such number of common stock shares as = detormimed by dividing 50,25 by the converssion price in
elfect at the ime of comversion. The original conversin price of $41.75 will he adjusied for any subsequent
recapiahzations, stock combimations, stock dividends, or stock splits,

Each share of Series C prefermed stock is convertible ot any time after issuance af the option of the halder
it such number of common stock shares as is determined by dividing 51, 10 by the conversion price in effect at
the time of conversion. The onginal conversion price of 3330 will be adjusted for any suhsequent
recapitalizations, stock combimations, stock dividends. or stock splits.

Shures of Series A, B, and C prefirred stock muomatically convert o slares of common stock ugon the
closing of a finm commatment underwriiten public offering o price of ned less than 33,30 per share and
aggregate net proceods of not less than S25,0000HKD,

Liguidaion

In the event of any hguidation, dissohsion, winding-up of our eompany, sale of our company or
substantelly all of our assets, or upon a cenain merger or consolidation tmnsaction, the holders of Sercs A aml
B prefersed stock will be entitled 1o receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of our assets 1o the
holders of common stock, the amownt of $0.75 per share plus an amount equal 1o wll declared but unpaid
dividends of the Series A and B preferred stock. The holders of Series C preferred stock will be entitled o
receivie, prios and in preference to any distribution of any of our assets 1o the holders of common stock, the
amount of §1.10 per share, plus an amount equal 1o all declared, but unpaid dividends of the Series C prefermed
stk

11 the pesets pvablable Tor distribatbon among the holders of Senes A, B, and C prefermed stock and
promassory pates shall be insulficient i permil the payment 1o such bolders of their respective liguidation
preference, then the entire assers amd surplus funds then reraining legally svailable for distidbugion shall be
dustributed rtably among the holders of Series A, B, ol C preferrad stock and prosmissary netes i proportion 1o
the preferential amount each hobder would otherwise be emitled 1o reeeive, Upon completion of reuired
preferential distributions, any of our remaiming assets avadlable for distribotion shall be distributed smong e
hedders of common stock.

[ivicerds

The holders of Serics A, B, and © preferred stock are entiilad to receive dividends wlen and as decloged by
the Board in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividemd on our common stock. Such dividends are
nol cumilative.

Vinting

Easch dhare of Series A, B, and C preferned stock has ase vale for cach full shase of common stock into
which its respective shares of prefemmed stock could be converted on the recend date for e vote. Wi must receive
ai affimative vole oF written consenl foodn o magority of the bolders of Series A, B, of C prefermed aock, voling
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s i separle class, for ony change in the number of authorized prefermed shares: changes in the preferences,
rights, privileges, or powers of the preferred sharcholders; or sale, merger, or consolidation in which the holders
of our capital stock retain bess than 0% of the voting power after the transaction.

Note 1 Stock-Based Compensation
Stack Opiion Plan

The Board has adopted aml approved equity-based incentive plans {the “Equity Plans" ) which provide for
the iauance of nongualified amd incentive stock options to employees, board members, and consultams ks
sequire shares of commen stock. The Equity Plons also allow for the issuance of restricted stock, although o
restricted stock had been issued under the equity plans through December 31, 2002, The Board has reserved
2,120,055 shares of common stock 1o be issued in conjunction with the Equity Plans. The term of each oplion is
ten vears. Equity awards i nonexecutive employees generally vest and become exercisable over a four-year
period, with 25% vesting after one year and 1/48 vesting each month thereafier. Equity swards to exectives
generally vest and hecome exercisable over o five-vear period. with 2% vesting after one year and 1/60 vesting
each month thereatter. The option agreements inchsde resriclions on the sale of shares acquired by the exercise

ol optusns,
Uhir Equity Plan stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 200 | and 2002 15 sismmanzed as
fesllows:
Number of Option W, el A
Shares Available i Shares Eulllul';thﬁt-l;-t‘lfr Opdinas
Tar Garand Ehutstamiling {dptinn Shares Evercisable
Balance ot Devember 31, 2000 ... .o0ia.. 1,099,229 LR 53122 354,015
Increase im reserved shares ............ RILUTEE — —
Girmbed oo 1423 .50u0y 423,500 521
Bitnoniaed i e el - 3.0 145
Forfeited .. ..o innnnnnnniannnas 99342 (99 342) 435
B PaRE = e e e e 194,534 [ 194.534) 255
Balance ot Devember 31,2001 ... .00aes 1,268,905 795,303 431 ELER
Girmmbed e . 253500y 253,900 067
Brrvmed ol i bl e — (5.288) 036
Forfeited .. ... A . 204,534 (20h4.534) 464
BExpired ...... o 28553 [28.553) 4487
Balunce w December 31,2012 .. ........... 1,249,082 HI0EIR im AERA40

The weighted average exercise price of exercisable options at December 31, 200 1 and 2012 was 52,86 and
$3.00, respectively.

The ot intninsic value of stock oplions exercised during the years ended Deceniber 31, 2001 and 2012 was
SOANH) amwd 547 40K, respectively,

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock oplions oulstending ot December 31, 2001 and 2002 was 53, 1 24,0060
and 53,586,000, respectively.

The aggregate imirinsic value of stock options exercisable at Decomber 31, 2001 and 2002 was 51,553,000
aned 53, 598,000, respectively.

The weighted avernge grant diste fair value of stock options granted in 200 1 and 2012 was 53,25 amll §5.59,
respectively.
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Informotion conceming cutstanding and exercisable opions st December 31, 2002 15 summarnized as follows:

Ihecemsher 81, 3¥i2

Welghted Averuge
Furrcise Number of Optian Bemalming Contractunl
I'rices Shnres Life 'Y emrs) {iptinns Exercisnble
SLIZ-062 e ALK LA ] EUALET
S145-8323 ...l 1 809K 504 I TR.526
SASZ-BE2M L iiiiiaas 336028 TA40 133,903
SO3-81033 (... 253900 E 17.001

81028 ﬂ

-

The weighted average remaining contractal life of exercisable opions at December 31, 2001 and 2012 wos
635 vears and 5.53 years, respectively.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2012, there was 51470000 and 51,771,000, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation cost reloted to nenvested share-based compensation arrangements granied wnder the
Equity Pluns. Thist ¢ost is expected to be recognized over o weighted average period of 3,71 and 3.58 years,
respectively. The todal fair value of shares vesied during the yvears ended December 31, 2001 and 2012 was
$422.000 anddl S482.00K), respectively. We currently use authorized and unissued shares 10 sutisfy share award
exerCises.

CEQ Equity Agrecement

W have on employment agreement with Dr. Rve Kubota, Until the mitial public offering of our common
stock, we are obligated pursuam to the employment agreement to grant stock opticns or allow Dr. Kubots to
purchise restricted shares of commen stock as often a5 necessary to muiniwin Dr. Kubota's equity position m our
company equal 1o least 515 of our isseed and sutstanding voling commaon stock on an as-converted basis. The
shares under these awnrds are subject 1o repurchase provisions that lapse quarterly over 36 months from the dote
of grant, Dutstanding optiens and convertible seeurities wre not included in the caleulntion of Dr. Kubot's equity
position unbess the options are exercised or the convertible securities are converted into our copatal slock, The
purchase price of each stock grant may be made by an interesi-bearing full recourse promissory nete. Per ihe
terma of the employment ogreement, we are obligated 1o perisdically pay Dy, Kubotn cach bonuses consisting of
principal ard interest amounts dee ureler such promicaory noles and adelitionnl txes meumed by Dr. Kubota as a
resull of receving such bonuses, if any,

W treat thix arrangerment as share-hased comgensation, The emphoyment agreement provides equity owards
ter D Kuhota subject o service and performance conditions, The gran and measurement date is the dute ot
which the Board approves the grant of the options or sale of the restncted stock o Dy, Kubota, The fair value of
the swand is established e the current fair vidue of our common siock, Compensation expense related 1o this
arrangement is included in general sl shminisirtive expense.

During the vears embed December 31, 2001 and 2012, v connection with stock oplion exercises, we entered
inb a restricted stock purchase agreement with Dr, Kubota for the issuance of 2,278 and 3,504 shares,
respectively, of our comimon stock in exchange for a three-year promissory pote in the al amount of 518,000
andl S5T000, respectively, Concurrent with the execution of the agreement, we paid a bonus 1o Dr, Kubsoa,
wiich was in wirn wsed o repay the promissory nede aned o8 compensation for res associated with the awarnd
We recorded spproximately 530,000 and SR9.000, respeciively, in compensation expense in connection with the
awaord,
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Note 14, 01K Retirement Plan

We sponsor an emplovee retirement plan unader Seetion 4000k of te Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. All employees who meet manimum eligibility requirements are cligible 1o participate in the plan. To
date, we have not matched emplovee conatributions made to the plan.

Note 15, Related-Party Transactions

Peter Kresel, MLB.AL, a member of the Board, received payment from us for consulling services and
reimbursemient of direct expenses. Mr. Kresel's payments for consulting services and expense reimbursements
weere 5217000 and 5216000 during 2011 amd 200 2, respectively.

Oisukn, our collsborative partner (see Note 5) and sole source of revenue for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2012, owns 3315 of our outstanding stock, while Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory, Ine. owns 6.67% of
our outstanding stock. Topether, these 1w entities own 14 98% of our outstanding stock, These entities do not
have representation on the Board,

5Bl anlmg_:, Ine, (n related party b, one of our shareholders, is the holder for our contingently convertible
et (see Note 9),

Mt 16, Subsequent Fvenls
Enixustar Milestane

In February 2013, we achieved the development milestone reluted o emixust for the imitzodion of a
Phase 203 clinical trial in the United States, As a result of achieving this milestone, a 35000000 payment is due
from isuka, which we recognized as revenoe o the time the miledone was met in 200 3.

CEQD Equity Agrecment

T Janniary and May 2003, the boand of directors granied an awurd of shares of restricied stock o Dr. Ryo
Kubsdta purstant to his employment agreement and consistent with prior practices. 'We recorded approximately
ST36,000 10 compensation expense in connestion with the sward in 200 3.

RKebamipide Agreermens
o September 200 3, Oisuka elecied to end its iebamipide co-development sgreement with us, As o resaili, we
receied as revenu, in the quarier ended Seplember M, 20003, o S20000KK updront payment from Chsukis that

hisl been defemed due toorelumd provisions. These refund provizsions expired with the end of the co-developnent
agreement,

O October |8, 2003, we announced a plan to reduce expenses, imcluding o workforce reduction, as a result
of the wrminution of the Rebamipide Agreement. The plan will result in a reduiction in fosce of approsimately
35% of our ttal workforce, or approximately 30 employvees, The emplovees affected by the reduction in foree
wiere notified the week of October 21, 2013,

A resaile of this workloree reduciion, we miticipate reconding a chorge related o severance, other
termination benefits, and outplacement services, in the three maonths ending December 31, 2003,
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Pro forma
Sharcholden”
oy al
December M. Seplemsber M, 2013 HLIDL!-
pLET Ammmmdifed | []
MAssils
Crarremi anigis:
Casly and cash eguavalents . 3 (Y5 3 4372
Invesrmests - ... {1y 17,347
Resiricied investmenis _ P 300 3 0ebly
Acounts receivable Fromn collaborasions with II'I'|MI_|F X700 13,793
Diclomes kan awsel .0 oue sEpmann aman i TH
Poepaid capenses and rlh‘-.rmm-m :n.-m. (5] 2R
WA T I o i 1 i Lt e i L LRSS 4%
Peoqaerty aml eqquipment, net Lua 1,220
Hestricied hmp-erm mvestmenis ..o + Ti0 2128
Long-temm delemed taxasset ..o oonnae... iy 3595 1912
Do of fevimg oosds - .- oo icisisaaans i . L% L
Chhor assets. ... Mmandiass sassan 471 15l
Tstal pugts ] ATOM4 L] SARY
Lintifities sl sharchobiers® equily
Correst libsilitses:
Crmmemt mabwwinies of oontingenly comvertible debt, relaed pany ... % 6500 % 1.2 Kb
Aot L Pyl - e e icieicidsassrsssssssasesassasasasas Tis K
Averued Bsbadlies oo oeiniein s TR ) RN [s) 0
ccorued compension . ... Fal R T 2413 2.0y
Dhefierrod revemse from collaborations with a related p-ﬁ 50 -
Dol rowl mssd lease inocolives ...... Cnnmannn L 25
Tunal cusroms bl fiies . . - 13378 A4
Commiiiments
Long-iemn defemed rent. besse mcemives, and othes ... ..o oo i [ s
Lang-iomn defermed revemse from collaborations with 8 melsted parcy . 2000 -—
Lamg o conlingently comsriiblie debe, melated pany . 3300 - -_
Tostal fusg by Blbliies oo oo rmn s s TR ]
Sharchedders” equiny:
Comvertible prefermed siock, no par value, 52453 shares mnhonzed:
Series A no par vahue, 2,734 shares ssthorieed, issoed, aml
il Rarydiemp (iguilatson value of S203 1k fo ilsares issued and
il sl (pwo fowinad oo ... i) 24 hILE] B
Sertes B, i pur value, 11500 share authortoed, junses, sed
ouiskanding (lgdation value of 811425k 5o shares roed ond
uurtskanbisg (pro forma) ..o i aiieiaiaiaas 13333 13387 —
Saries ©, niv par value, 31 E1R shares authorired. 11 807 shares
iavued and eeastanding {liguidstion value of §13,0881, o shaees
(e janid oo slanding P BHNMED - .opvien i r e in i 12m 12,71 -
Comman sinck, no par valae, 60000 shares mathorized; 1151 s
VL9972 shanes saned and catstamfing an of Eeocmiber 31, 2002 sl
mmﬂmlllfun—#dkmmlk&b 26422 shares issuesd
anil wilslanaliig §pe Fomma) . . kN LM ] SRR
Additbenal paid-in cgmial e i Fa ey 1555 LR el s
Ao Rated] wnther comprehemive ks oo oo liiiiiiais - 113 ik
Aecoummbaied defice e T TS L2 ARG (i ]
Tartal sharcholders” eqity 1A4W 31K 5 4350
— ] o
Tunal feabilities aml sharchol e’ equay . .. S2AKD

] 47024 5
——

See aecompanying noles 1o condensed financiil slalenents.
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ACUCELA INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(unaudited )

{in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended Septomber 5,
mil R
Revenves from collaborations with a related pamy ..o oo 5 35141 8§ 41,695
Expenses:
Rescarch and developmenl oo ovuiu iivanaiiian it iaiaiihiianaa 22,605 26,221
General and administmMive ..o ovseo v ianseriansiaraariaiaasirais 5853 1724
T DRI & i s o o g B W R o R A 28644 31945
Ineome from opemations ... coviiciisisiianasiiasiaisaatisiaiisanas 6,493 T30
Chher income (expense |, net:
LT 4 1o
INEPREl BEPEIIRE -+ o g asinntd s s g bd s s e ddtn s s bdas s brmbbns s (1043 {88)
Chhier income dexpensel, Nel . .oun i iiaa s i 121 Tl
Total orther income Expense), M8, o000 e i i e [RLEIR L
Trecorie befione BICOIIE HIK + 0o uun e e e st on st ase et e ae s s 6,362 T.E14
[NCOIMIE SX EXPETEE &\ 4 gaiais snad s vatn oo saasnissasssssdissssbsssesas 2,283 2,123
T I L e i g e o o o o e o e A, 108 aln
Met income sttributible 10 paricipaling securilies .. ...p e irreisiaas 3006 3,735
Mel inceme sttribaitible 10 common shareholders ..o i e 5 I,in3 § 1376
Net income per share mtributable 1o commen shisrcholders
BREEHE  u v i e e s e e e e e i s L1 g 5 a1z
Drluted ..o s e e e e 3 iR 5 nil
Weighied average shares used o compute net ineome per shire atiributable o
commnon sharcholders:
BB i o g o o W 11,50 11,961
[Hiluted 12,147 12,346
Prov Fommis net ineaime per shige i
Busic .20
[iluted 019
Weighted average shares used to compute pro forma net income per share
attributable 1o common shireholders:
DRIBBEE + v s w s i Er b a i a o b b b b e b 26,796

See aecompanying noles o coivdensed financial stalenients,
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ACUCELA INC.
CONDEMSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(umaudited §
{in thonsandsy
Nine Mamths Ended Seplember M),
oz pi k]

B T T T 5 A 0E % 5,111
Chher comprehensive gain {loss):

Net unrenlized gain (losshom seCurlIes  oo.uieiiiiaiiiiiaiiis 4 {13}
Comprehemsiva iMoomie . . ... i i viiia i iaaasiiaasnaiassiasniaas 5 4113 8 50498

See pccompanying nodes o condensed financinl siaements,
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ACUCELA INC,
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(umaudited §
{in thonsandsy
Nine Months Ended September M1,
¥z 2A
Cash Mows from operating activities
T I e ek e i Wm0 o W i, W 5 A 08 3 3111
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income 1o met cash provided by operating
metivilies:
Depreciation and amssrbizmbon . ... o.vaeeag s e 344 395
Losx from the disposal of fixed 858085 ... 0 oivu v iinnviiana i ias 10 —
Amortization of deferred finmncing costs L. ie e ] —
Siock-based compensation . ... .00 00l ST T s (ML
Drefemed XSS L 0 vt e e ey ER R 1,943
Amoetization of premiumidisconnt on marketable secunbies ... ‘e 59 233
Changes in opermting assets and lanhilities:
Accounts receivahle from collaborations with o relsted party .. . [NLE 15,093)
Prepaxd expenses and other comrent nssets 0000000000 11.254) {13007)
Accounls payoble ... i e e s e e e {L6I8) 122)
Acered BabiliBies ... o0 e i s e i 1268 LA16
Accrued COMPENSRIOR .. ... viie i aria i iaraniorrataniaias 228 (153)
Delerred rent and lease ERCEREVES 0oy an s iinasnn ey {33 (19%)
Dreferred revenue from collaborations with o related party ..., ... 3220 {25700
L 14 17
Met cash provided by operating setivilies ... oovy i iaran e aiineias 49,954 LN
Cash Mows from investing sctivitics
Purchases of marketable securities svailable forsale ...o.0eoiiaan {10,850 {20,506
Muturities of marketable securities available Forsale . o000 0000 e 5508 [0,
Additions to property and SqUIPIIEN . ... ooe e iae it et e [186) (472)
et cash usad in iNVesing BCEVIHEE <. he it i ieniniieaniaais 15.568) (10,912)
Cash Mows from finoncing activities
Proceeds from ssuance of common stoek ..o iaia e e 3 ]
Restricted investments iNCOMIE . ..o uunre it iaraninriassrassins - 132y
Payments Tor defermed offering costs L. o0vn e iarianiiiiaaaraneras {412) {2,270
Excess tux benefit from stock-bised compensalion .. .. .ovvvrianrraanias — 123
Net cash usad in Maoncing GctivIbes ... veaiiiianiniaireaarres (402 (2,173
Incrense (decresse) i cash and cash equivalents ... .. .. uiiannriinne, 4,007 (12,067)
Cash and cash eguivalents—hegmning of period ... ... aa 9,760 16,635
Cush and cosh equivalents—end el period .. ... oo aa 13,767 4,572
Supplemental disclosure of non-cuxh activities
Unpaid deferrid alferig e0888 .. voveriiiearvriaiiriariis rannriinres 1 — Y 653

See acoompanying notes o condensed Hinancinl satenents,
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ACUCELA INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note 1. Signilicant Accounting Policies
Basix of Presentation

The accompanying unmsdited financinl stalements of Acoceln Inc. (“the Company™ or “Acucela™), hove
been prepared on a basis consistent with the December 31, 200 2 audited finincial statements and include all
wljustments, consisting of oaly normal recurring sdjesiments, necessary 1o fairly present the information sel forils
herein, in accordance with GAAP, The comdensedd interim fnancial stements hisve been preparsd in accorslance
with the regulutions of the Securities und Exchange Commission, or the SEC. and omil certwin mlommmtion und
fossimede dischosure necessary (o present the stulements in seconlanes with GAAP. These mancial stitements
shonbd be resd in conjunction with the sedited fnancinl statements and notes thereso included in our Begistration
Statement on Form S-1 for the year ended December 31, 2002, The results of operations for the nine monils
emded September 30, 2003 are not necessarily indicative of the results 1o be expected for the entire fiscal yewr or
any Tuture period.

Use af Extintes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management o make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reporied in the condensed financial stailements and scoompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Unandited Fro Forma Shareholders' Equity and Earnings per Share

Upam the effective date of our initizl public offering of stock, all of the outstanding contingently convertible
debl and prefemed stock, peaiming we rise of beasd S25,0000000 al o price of al keast $3.50 per share, will
ateamatically convent o shares of common stock, Unasudited pro forma net incomne per share miinbutable o
common shareholders for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 hus been compiited to give elfect 1o ihe
ateanatic conversion of the contingently convertible debt and preferred stock mta 2.636,364 and 10,813,867
shiares of comman stock, respectively, as though these conversions had occaned as of the beginning of the perod
presented,

Subsequent Evenbs

Managemeni hos evaluated evenis occurring through November 7, 2003 for accounting amd disclosure
implications.

Mitee 2, Mel Inecame Per Share

We compute nel income per share of common stock using the two-closs methad reguired for participating
secuniies. We consider all seres of our convertible preferred stock o be participating securities as the holders
are entitled 1o participate in common stock dividends with common stock on an as-converied basis. In
pecondonee with the two-class method, carmings allocated 0 these participating securities, which inglde
participation rights in undisribuied eamings with common sock, mne subtracied from net income w determine
net income uinbatable w conunen shurchoblers,

Basic net income per shure is caleulated by dividing net income nttributable o commaen sharcholders by the
weighted average number of shares ontstanding for the period. Diluted net incomse per share is caleulated by
dividing net income attributable to conunon shareholders by the weighted average aumber of shares of the
common stock outstanding and other dilutive securities outstanding during the period. The potential dilwive
shares of sur commeon stock include the exercise of outstanding stock options tha are dilutive. Dilutive seouritics
in our diluted EPS caleulation do not include our contingently convertible debt, which are convertible upon the
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oceurmence of a qualified initial public offering of af least $25. 000,000 and $3.50 per share, as defined in the
contingently convertible debt agreement. As of September 30, 2013, such an event has not ocourred amd
sccondingly the hoklers of the contingently convertible debt have no rights 1o our undistribated camings. Upon
such an event, the contingently convertible debt will be convertible into 3636, 364 commeon shires, after an
intermediate conversion into Series C prefemed shares.

The fullowing table reconcibes the numersion and densminaior used 1o caloulate diluted pet income per
share for the penods presented (m thousandsj:

Mirer Mol hs

Enadid Septimbsr 30,
2z 2k
Mumerior:
Met income attributable 1o commen sharecholders ... ... % LI3 § 1376
Dienominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding—hasic ... 11,900 11,961
Dilutive effect of stock opthons .. ... ov oo ioinnnana. 248 385
ch'lul_hlcd averuge shores 1:|ul.1.la|r||.|in1|:--4]ilul'.c1:| KRl |1 | r R [ S 7T

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 amd 200 3, there were o anidilutive options o purchase
shires of commesn stock outstunding.

Unavdited pro forma et income per share attribatable 10 common sharcholders for the nine months ended
Sepiember 30, 2013 has been computed to give effect 1o the antomatic coaversion of the contingently convertible
debt und prefemred stock into commion stock as though these conversions had ocewrred ot the beginning of the
fiscal period. The following table sets forth the computation of our unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net
income per share during the nine months ended September 30, 2003 {in thousands, excepd for share amounis):

Nime Months
Eled Seprembr 30, 2013
Numenior
Metaneoml i e s sl e S e 5 5101
Interest expense on contingently convertible debt, net of
1 e B WP T P TR P L Rt Pt P B P er %
Pro Formin et iMoo . on gl i b ssdsa e d e iaad 5 5. 166
Denominator:
Weighted avernge shares outstanding—basic ... ... ... .. 11,941
Contingently convertible debt—pro forma conversion ... .. 3036
Preferred stock—pro forma conversion . .....o.oo o ciaaa 10EL
IPro form weighted nverage shones
outstanding—basic .. o iis i e 26411
Dhilutive effect of stock opiions .. . .oouveiiiiiiaiiiina.. I8R5
Pro formo weighted wverage shanes
ousstanding—diluted . ... i iia 26,76

Mot 3, Concentration of Risk

Al of our significen nssets are located in the United States, and we did not have any revenue geneniled
outside of the United Suites for the nine montds ended September M0, 2002 snd 201 3. Dusing the nine manth
pertods ended Seplember M0, 2002 and 200 3 and a5 of December 31, 2002 and September 30, 2003, all of our
reventies and pecouns receivable were denved from the collaboration agreements with Onsaika,
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Note 4, Investments and cash and cash equivalenis

Investments sre carmed st fair valwe. Cosh equivalents are carmied o cost, which spproximates fair value.
Chur investments are classified as available-for-sale securities. with unrealized goins and losses recorded in
secumulmed other comprehensive income or loss uwniil realiaed. Short-term investments have o remaming
miaturity of less than one year from the reporting date. Our long-term investments are investments with remaining
mturitics exceeding 12 months from the reporting date. Premioms and discounts on investments are amonized
ink interest income over the contrictial term of the security.

Cash. cash equivalents and investments as of December 31, 2002 and Seplember 30, 2003, consisted of the
following (in thousands):

December 3, 2002
i pos Unreallzed Livines Uneenlized
Amomibeed Cost Vloddimg € nlos Walding Losses Foldr Vahsr
Types of secunity:
Commercial paper .... § TR & 1 % — 3 799
Corporate deht
secunities - . ... ... 5.968 - (2 5966
Municipal boods ... .. 1,225 - -— 1.225
Centificaies of
depisif . ovviinan 1,500 | = 6,500
Money market
funds «.ouvnennnse 14,306 — - 14,306
Gl LA s 528 - - 528
5 9325 § Z 5 (2) § 2325
Siplenaber Hb, 20003
Lerves Lnrealised Lariss Unrenlized
Amoniioed Cost Helldimy Caies Holding |ossss Fuir Valus
Types of scourity:
Commercial paper ... % 12y 3 z 5 — § 1025
Corporate debt
IO | 15,6001 — (51 15,505
Municipal bopds ... .. 1630 - (1 1638
Certificates of
deposit . ... .o ... 4985 2 (AR 4976
Money market fund - .. 3360 — — 3,360
L | A Er s e el = — HO
5 27497 & 4 5 17y 5 27454

There were no realized gains or losses for the perods presended.

Murket valiees were determined for coch individinl security in the investment portfolio. The declines in
value of these investments are primarnily related to changes in interest rates and are considered 10 be temporary in
neture. We evaluate, pmong other things, the duration and extent to which the foir value of o security is less than
its cost, the financial condition of the issuer, and our intent w sell, or whether it is more likely than not we will be
required to sell, the secunty before recovery of the amortized cost basis, We do not consider these investments o
be other-thun-temporanly mmpaired os of Seplember 30, 2003,

MNote 5, Fair Value Measuremenis

We meivsure and repon our cash equivalents at enmying value, which approsimates Fuir vadise, and investment
securties {finenciil assetsy at fuir vislue, Fuir valise is defmed as the exchange pace that would be recelved for on st
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or paid to transfer o lobility, an cxit price, in te principal or most sdvantageous merket for the asset or lisbality in an
orderly transaction between market parbcipants on the measuirement date. Vidwation technigques used o measure fair
vidue muximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the uwse of unobservable ingats.

Financial assets ane classificd and disclbosed inone of the following three categones:

Level |—Quated prices in active markets for identical assets and Habilities,

Lesel 2—Inputs other than Level 1 et are observable, either direcily or indirectly, suchas guoted prices
fowr similar assets or lizbilities; quoted prices in markets that are sob active; or other inguts i wre
obscrvable or can be corroborated by olnervable murket datn for substantially the full term of the assets or
liahilities, and

Level 3—Unobservable inputs in which there is linle or no market deta available, which requires us i
devebop our own imsumplions.

Chiir Tinancul assets massaired at fair value on & recirming basis as of December 31, 2002 and September 30,
200 3 were as bollows (in thotsands )

Decensber 31, 20012
Tavel 1 Lovil 2 Lavel 3 Tnisl
Cash equivalens:
Money market fumbs . ... ... 14306 § — £ — 214,306
Munhcipol Bome . < s sl s e et —_ 1,225 —_— 1,225
Corporate debl securities ... ... voenrn .. — L7 — S8
A e e e e e e Sk s e e B et 3 538 —_ — 528
SR S 1B 0§ 16,645
Inwestmenls:
Commerclal paper ....c.comvvnoirnirsronanss 5 — § ™M 5§ — 5 T8
Corpodate debl secuwilbes ... ... ...iiaionn. - 5,381 - 5,381
Cenificaies of deposit ...ovovveciimvmicoinnes — 650 — 6,500
5 — $12680 § — S12.680
September M), 2003
Lawel 1 Level 2 Leved A Tatsl
Cash equividems:
Money murket funds . .o e $330) § — 5 — 5 3.360
Mugbeipal Dot orssis 005 s nnssprisasnes — 625 — 625
el R S RN R S T F e e K] B — — BO0
$4350 §F 65 5 — 5 4875
Inwestments:
Commercial paper ... cceeceseaiansiiinnsns $ — 5105 5 — 5 1025
Corpoeste debt securities ... ... .. .l — 15,595 — 15,595
Municipal bomls .. oovieiii i i e — 1013 — 1013
Certificases of deposit ... .. ... ... . — 4976 — 4976
5 — 22600 8§ — 12609

Ohir level 2 finuncial asets include government-backed secunties, nunicipa] bomls, commercial paper,
corpurate debt securities, ond cemificales of deposite. These level 2 financiil assets are valued using pricing
miodels that comsider the most relevant observable inputs available for similar secarities, including such items as
reporied trades, brokenfdealer quotes, bids, offers, sid vields.
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W lad 51 2,000,000 of eontingently convertible deb with o related party outstanding os of December 31,
206 2 and Sepienvber 30, 2003, Al December 31, 2002 and Sepember 30, 2013, ihe estimated Fair valoe of the
contingemly convertible debt was 547,000, (K and 3 103,000,000, respectively. Our valuation analysis was
prepased wsing o two-step process that inittally estimated the fair value of the entive company, using a discounted
cash flow model. and next allocated this valoe to the varions debd and equity securities we have issued. Valse
was allocated bo the contingently convertible debi as ithe resuli of ihe preferences and conversion features of the
notes under our valuation masdel of the Company, which is based on the Black-Scholes option pricing masdel.
This model considers overall value of the entity, Tiquidation prefercnces, risk free rates, volatility rates of peer
comganics, and time 1o a coaversion event. Our valuntion of the contingently convertible debt is considered to be
Level 3.

Mote 6, Eqguity Transwctions
Commaon Stock:

During the first nine months of 2012, opticns @ purchase 288 shares of common siock were exercised in
exchange for cash, 196 shores were issued pursuan! (o an employment agreement and options to porchase
163 54H) shares of commesn stock were gromted s compensation,

During the first nine months of 2003, aptions o purchise 30,219 shares of common stock were exercised in
exchange for emsh, 31 452 shares were isaed pursient oon emphsyment sgreement, ind options @ porehise
| 1E230 shares of comman stock were granted m compensation,

CED Equity Agrecment:

We have an employment agreement with Dr, Byo Kubote Uniil the inltial public offering of our common
stock. wie are obligated pursuam (o the employvment agreement (o grant stock options or allow Dr. Kubots o
purchise restricied shares of commeon stock as oflen as necessary to miintuin Dr. Kebaola®s equity position in our
company equal ot least 5 1% of our isseed and satstonding soting common stock on an as-converted basis, The
shires under these awands wne subject 1o repurchase provisions thas lapse quarterly over 36 months from the dase
of grant, Outstanding options and convertible securities wre nol included in the calculution of Dr, Kubo's equity
position unkess the options are exercised or the convertible securities ane converted into our capital sock, The
purchise price of each stock grant muy be made by an interest-bearing full recourse promissorny note, Per the
terms of the employment agreement, we are obligated 10 periodically pay Dr. Kubota cish bonuses consisting of
principal sl interest amounts due wber such promissory notes and adelitkonnl 1eaes incurmed by Dr, Kubsola as a
resull of receiving such bonuses, i any,

We tremt this amangement as share-hased comgensation, The employiment agreenent provides equity awards
1o D, Kobota subject o service and performance conditions, The gram and messurement dote is the dte o
which the Board approves the grant of the options or sabe of the restricted stock w D, Kubota. The fair value of
the award is espblished s the current fair value of our common dock, Compensation expense related 1o this
armangement is mcluded in general and administrutive expense.

During the nine meonths ended September 30, 20003, in connection with stock opticn exervizes, we entered
into restricied stock purchase agreements with D, Kubota for the issuance of 31,452 shares of our common
stock. In Junuary 2003, 20,816 shares were issued at $10.33 per share and in May 2013, 10,636 shares were
Tssued an 322,69 per share, in exchange for three-year promissory nodes i the total amaunt of $436,000.
Concurrent with the exceution of the agreements, we paid bonuses to D, Kubota, which were in turm used to
repay the promissory notes and as compensation for tixes associated with the awards. We recorded
approximately £TR6,000 in compensation expense in connection with the awards,
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Chairges i Accumulared Other Comprehensive Loss (in thousands )

Nine Mondhs Endixd Nine Mowmihs Ended
Seplember M, 20011 Seplember 10, 1013
Unnealizesl holding Unrealized holding
Imn:l:nmﬂ::?ah_lc-l'ur-de Immrf:vlihkk-l'w-qi:
seuriics SOCUriiees

Beginning balapce ... .ccvevininniniansiiannsnian 3 6y 5 -—
Current period other comprehensive gain (loss) . .. 4 (13}
Endingbalance ........ccccaveiiannaninnsnnas 5 2} % (13}

Note T. Contingently Convertible Debt with Related Party

O June 30, 2013, the Company renegotiated the lenms of the contingently convertible debt due on June 30,
2003, The maturity dote was extended one veor 10 June 30, 2004 and the interest rule was decrensed 1o (L84% per
s,

O August 31, 2013, the Company renegotiated the terms of the contingently convertible debt due on
August 31, 2003, The mawrity date was extended one vear 1w August 31, 2004 and the interest rate was
deereased o B.584% per snnum.

Note K. Income Taves
The Company had no uncertain mx positions as of December 31, 2012 and September 300, 2003,

MNote ¥, Collaborative Arrangements with Related Party

In the first wine months of 2003, we received from Otsuka and recognised in revenue a 350 million
mitlestone payrment o the inttiatsm of the Phase X808 clincal mnal in the Unined States foe cnixosen,
Adhtwnnlly, we received an 35,1 million payment related 1o Otsuka’s funding of oar share of emixostat
drl.-'ch:pnu:ni. s ol f&'r.-r.lcmhcr 30, ME.

RKebamipide Agreement

In Seprember 200 3, Disuka elecied to end its rebamipide co-development agreement with us. As a resull, we
recagnized as revemie, in the quarter ended September 30, HH 3, a 52 (NH] pdront preyment frorm Chsuks that
hadl been deferred due 1o refund provisions. These refund provisions expired with the end of the co-development
agreemeni.

MNote 10, Subsequent Events
Straiegic Resirucinring

O Owctober 18, 2013, we onnounced a plan to reduce expenses, incloding a workforee reduction, as a result
of the termination of the Rebamipide Agrecment. The plan will resull in a reduction in force of approximately

35% of our todal work force, or approximately 30 employees. The employees affected by the reduction in force
were notified the week of October 21, 2015

As o result of this workforee reduction, we mnticipate recording a charge of 51.0 million related 1o
severance, olher termination henefits. and outplacement services, in the three months ending December 31, 3013,

Termination of Line of Credit

In December 2013, we decided 1o terminate our Line of Credit, As a resull, the 35.8 million of investments
ane not longer restricted

F-37
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Acucela Inc.
SEC
SEC
2010 11
2009 10
FASB
VSOE TPE
2010 FASB
2009 12 31
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2013 2013 12 31 7.147 7.147
2014 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315
2038 15 15

212/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

ooooooooooooo

Q)

2013 2013 12 31 7.147

2014 2037 12 31 15.315

2038 15
©

2014 2023 12

)

213/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)
oOoooooooooood

214/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)
oOoooooooooood

215/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoooooooooOoog
( )
12 31
2010 2009 2008

13,997 1,433,852 12,059 1,235,323 8,213 841,339
5,594 573,049 3,058 313,261 - -
7,007 727,016 6,841 700,792 6,549 670,879
494 50,605 - - - -
994 101,825 181 18,541 42 4,302
28,176 2,886,349 22,139 2,267,919 14,804 1,516,521
1,983 203,138 1,273 130,406 1,363 139,625
22 2,253 39 3,995 70 7,170
3,972 406,891 - - - -
656 67,200 187 19,156 187 19,156
34,809 3,565,833 23,638 2,421,476 16,424 1,682,474
6,500 665,860 6,500 665,860 3,334 341,534
1,627 166,669 3,076 315,105 481 49,273
3,062 313,671 311 31,858 226 23,151
358 36,673 768 78,673 134 13,726
- - - - 69 7,068
557 57,059 715 73,244 - -
365 37,390 161 16,492 - -
12,469 1,277,324 11,531 1,181,235 4,244 434,755
486 49,785 201 20,590 501 51,322
2,000 204,880 2,000 204,880 6,679 684,19
5,500 563,420 5,500 563,420 8,750 896,350
253 25,917 197 20,180 227 23,253
8,239 844,003 7,898 809,071 16,157 1,655,123

216/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OoOooOoOddooOoomdmr
12 31
2010 2009 2008
52,452,514
A
2,734,334
2,051 2,051 210,104 2,051 210,104 2,051 210,104
B
17,899,998
13,425 13,387 1,371,364 13,387 1,371,364 13,387 1,371,364
c
31,818,182
11,807,272
12,988 12,771 1,308,261 12,771 1,308,261 12,771 1,308,261
60,000,000
2010 12 31 11,893,987
2009 12 31 11,707,987 3,110 318,588 2,515 257,636 1,364 139,728
1,019 104,386 690 70,683 448 45,893
(3%) (3,482) 1 102 - -

(18,203) (1,864,715)

(27,206) (2,786,982)  (33,998) (3,482,755)

14,101 1,444,506

4,209 431,169 (3,977)  (407,403)

34,809 3,565,833

23,638 2,421,476 16,424 1,682,474
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( )
12 31
2010 2009 2008
36,457 3,734,655 27,019 2,767,826 6,913 708,167
25,297 2,591,424 18,274 1,871,988 10,266 1,051,649
6,632 679,382 6,395 655,103 3,819 391,218
31,929 3,270,806 24,669 2,527,092 14,085 1,442,867
4,528 463,848 2,350 240,734 (7.172)  (734,699)
67 6,863 15 1,536 250 25,610
(122)  (12,497) (183) (18,746) 170)  (17,414)
64 6,556 (84) (8,604) 90 9,219
9 921 (252) (25,814) 170 17,414
4,537 464,770 2,098 214,919 (7,002)  (717,284)
4,466 457,497 15 1,536 - -
9,003 922,267 2,113 216,455 (7,002)  (717,284)
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2010 2009 12 31
A B c
2008 12 31 2,734,334 2,05117,899,998  13,387.1,807,272 12,77110,984,147 1,364 448 - (33,998) (3,977)
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (139,728) (45,893) (-X(3,482,755) X (407,403))
- - - - - - - - - - 4,679 4,679
2009-
13
) ) ) ) ) () (479,316) (479,316)
- - - - - - - - 212 - - 212
) ) ) ) (21,717) Q) ) (21,7117)
- - - - - ~ 141,300 64 - - - 64
- Q) - (6,556) (@) Q) ) (6,556)
2007 4 - - - - - — 446,440 647 30 - - 677
) Q) Q) (66,278) (3,073) Q) () (69,351)
2009 27 - - - - - - 136,100 440 - - - 440
) ) Q) (45,073) ) ) () (45,073)
- - - - - - - - - - 2,113 2,113
Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) (—i (216,455) (216,4552
) Q) ) Q) &  (102) Q) (102)
2,114
(216,558)
2009 12 31 2,734,334  2,05117,899,998  13,3871,807,272 12,77111,707,987 2,515 690 1 (27,208) 4,209
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (257,636) (70,683)  (102X(2,786,982)) (431,169)
- - - - - - - - 329 - - 329
Q) Q) - (-) (33,702) Q) () (83,702)
- - - - - - 80,000 45 - - - 45
) Q) ) (4,609) Q) Q) ) (4,609)
2010 28 - - - - - -~ 106,000 550 - - - 550
Q) ) Q) (56,342) ) Q) ) (56,342)
_ _ _ - - - - - - - 9,003 9,003
(@) Q) Q) Q) Q) () (922,267) (922,267)
_ z - Z . Z - - - (35) - (35)
) Q) ) ) O ((3.585)) () ((3,585))
8,968
(918,681)
2010 12 31 2,734,334  2,05117,899,998  13,387.1,807,272 12,77111,893,987 3,110 1,019 (34)  (18,203) 14,101
(210,104) (1,371,364) (1,308,261) (318,588X104,386) ((3,482))(1,864,715)X1,444,506)
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( )
12 31
2010 2009 2008
9,003 922,267 2,113 216,455 (7,002) (717,284)
697 71,400 582 59,620 497 50,912
17 1,741 31 3,175 36 3,687
Q) @717) 84 8,604 (13)  (1,331)
879 90,044 1,329 136,142 1,486 152,225
41 4,200 17 1,741 (169)  (17,312)
(256)  (26,224) (292)  (29,912)  (6,424) (658,074)
(813)  (83,283) (139)  (14,239) (16)  (1,639)
(1,449)  (148,435) 2,595 265,831 72 7,375
2,807 287,549 (32) (3,278) (496)  (50,810)
(4,466)  (457,497) - - - -
(410)  (42,000) 633 64,844 - -
489 50,093 (136)  (13,931) - -
(158)  (16,185) 715 73,244 6,679 684,196
(469)  (48,044) - - 1)  (9,322)
5,905 604,908 7,500 768,300 (5.441) (557,376)
(15.094) (1,546,229) (3.824)  (391,730)  (2,520) (258,148)
12,482 1,278,656 750 76,830 13,300 1,362,452
11 1,126 15 1,536 107 10,961
(1.411)  (144,542) (590)  (60,439) 177)  (18,131)

(4,012) (410,989) (3,649) (373,803) 10,710 1,097,132

45 4,609 64 6,556 1 102

- - (69) (7,068) (88)  (9,014)

45 4,609 ) (512) 87)  (8,912)
1,938 198,528 3,846 393,984 5,182 530,844
12,059 1,235,323 8,213 841,339 3,031 310,495
13,997 1,433,852 12,059 1,235,323 8,213 841,339
200 20,488 145 14,853 - -
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ACUCELA INC.
VCM VCM
AMD
CEO Ph.D. 2002
2010
OPA-6566 OPA-6566
2010 AMD
FDA
2008 AMD
2008
ASU  2009-13
2009 10 FASB ASU
2009-13 FASB ASC
605-25 ASU  2009-13
2010 15
ASU  2009-13
2009 4,679
2011 21
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2010 2009 12 31
2010 2009 12 31
2010 2009 12 31
2010
2009 12 31
2010 2009 12 31
@ ()
©) ©)
O (i)
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25 48

ASC 718

2010 2009 12 31

2010 2009
2.3%-2.8% 2.1%-3.8%
6.3 6.3-9.7
% —%
60%-65% 60%—67%

225/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)

OooOoooooooooo
ASC 815
ASC 815 ASC 815
A B C
ASC 815
ASC 815
ASC 815
2010 2009
2008
AMD
Acucela
5
40
40 (1
(i) 40
82.5
JDC
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360
©

Money Rates

©)

Acucela

ASC 730-20

175
Jcc

NPV
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15,580
TPE 15
2010 2009
2010 2009 12 31
2010 2009 12 31
2008
2 30
2010 2009
15,067 8,250
2
OPA-6566
2010
OPA-6566
@
&)
A2a

2010
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2010 2009
14,484
5,158 4,285
557 715
ASU  2010-17
ASU  2010-17
2009 12 31
2010 2009 12 31 2
OPA-6566
OPA-6566
(©))
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2010 652
2010 2009 12 31
2010 12 31
$ 1,301 $ - 3 @ $ 1,300
2,805 - ®) 2,800
4,406 - (28) 4,378
200 - - 200
1,948 - - 1,948
$ 10,660 $ - 3 (G4 $ 10,626
2009 12 31
$ 3,424 $ 13 - $ 3,425
1,901 - - 1,901
758 - - 758
9,246 - - 9,246
$ 15,329 § 1 s - $ 15,330
2010 2009 12 31 12
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2010 2009 12 31
2010 12 31

1 2 3
$ 1,948 $ - $ - $ 1,948
- 1,030 - 1,030
- 250 - 250
- 1,804 - 1,804
$ 1,948 $ 3,084 $ - $ 5,032
$ - $ 1,050 $ - $ 1,050
- 996 - 996
- 3,348 - 3,348
200 - - 200
$ 200 $ 5,394 $ - $ 5,594

2009 12 31

1 2 3
$ 9,246 $ - $ - $ 9,246
1,225 - - 1,225
- 1,801 - 1,801
$ 10,471 $ 1,801 $ - $ 12,272
$ 2,200 $ - $ - $ 2,200
- 100 - 100
- 758 - 758
$ 2,200 $ 858 $ - $ 3,058
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2010
2006 29
2012
2009 31
31
29 2010
2010 30
2011 30
2010 31
31
253
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2009 12 31
12 31
2010 2009
$ 2,175 $ 1,714
392 107
1,791 1,161
4,358 2,982
(2,375) (1,709)
$ 1,983 $ 1,273
2000 12 31 697 582
3,250 3,250 5.5 2009 31 2010 30
11 30 12
2009 31 2010
1.2 2006
31
2010 30
1.05
2010 31 2011
1.2 1.02
6.5 39
5.5
90
3.50 25
3.30
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1.10

ASC 815

2009 200

2010 12 31

2010 12 31

2010 12 31

2009 12 31

17,402

145

2022

SBI

2027

705
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2010
SBI

1.6
2023 2029
IRC 382

1RC382
240

4,466



2010

2010

2010

2009 12 31

2009
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12 31
2010 2009
5,917 6,268
1,600 1,600
869 863
263 175
171 125
112 123
8,932 9,154
(4,466) (9,154)
4,466 -
494 -
3,972 -
4,466 -
648 3,818
2010 2009
12 31
2010 2009
$ - $ -
(4,466) (15)
$ (4,466) $ (15)
12 31
2010 2009
34.0% 35.0%
(98.4) 0.0
@37.7) (38.2)
3.2 2.3
0.0 ©.7)
0.6 1.0
(98.3%) (0.6)%
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2007
IRS 2007
50
2010 2009 12 31
12
2010 2009 12 31
2015
2010 12 31
2011 $ 1,107
2012 376
2013 475
2014 469
2015 76
$ 2,503
2010 2009 997 530

10

60,000,000

52,452,514

2,734,334 17,899,998 31,818,182 A B C
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0.75

1.10

3.30

0.75
3.50
A B
C
A B
50
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0.25

1.10

25



11.

2002

2010

2009

2009 12

2010 12

2010

2010

2010

1,82

2010

2010

6

1,162

2002

2009 12 31

31

31

2009

2009

391

2009

2009

2009

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31
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2,000,000 10
25 1/48
1,402,741 586,767 $ 1.10 430,949
(479,000) 479,000 3.23
- (141,300) 0.46
200,471 (200,471) 2.42
1,124,212 723,996 2.27 316,004
(238,000) 238,000 4.97
- (80,000) 0.56
213,017 (213,017) 2.94
1,099,229 668,979 $ 3.22 354,015
2.09 1.11
339
977
864
2.94 2.11
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2010 2009 12 31
2010 12 31
)
$0.12-$0.62 70,000 3.45 70,000
$1.45-$3.23 362,479 4.80 280,286
$4.52-$5.19 236,500 9.52 3,729
668,979 6.33 354,015
2009 12 31
)
$0.12-$0.62 171,250 4.85 171,250
$1.45-$2.25 128,746 7.49 112,907
$3.23-$3.23 424,000 9.36 31,847
723,996 7.96 316,004
2010 2009 12 31 3.76
6.21
2010 2009 12 31
775 756 3.1
2010 2009 12 31 338
164
CEO
51
36
ASC718
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2007 C
1,339,320
1,081 31
2009 27
136,100
2009
702
2010 28
106,000
12.401(k)
1986 401 k
13.
Peter Kresel
Kresel
218 216
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1,942
2009
2009 12 31
440
550
717
2010 2009
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Balance Sheets
(Amaunts in Theusands, Except Share Data)
Unaudiied
December 31
uin LR 25
LU55 1Py 5% JFY Us% 1Py
Asniets
Lurrend asscls
Cash and cash equivalents 13,997 1 433 %52 12,05 1,235,323 %213 40,330
Short-tenn myvestments 5504 57349 30480 33261 -
Accounts recervahle T7 727016 R | TO 792 6,549 670 ETY
Defermed tax asset R 30,605 =
Prepaid expenses aml other carment asscts. g 100 %25 181 18541 42 4,302
Tintal cureni asscls IR1TH 2 BE6 249 22,130 2267919 14,504 1,216,521
Praperty and equipmend, nel 1985 203,138 1,273 130 200 1,363 130,625
Dieferred Anancrig costs, net 1 2253 ] KR L T 7170
Lomg-term deferred tax asscl 3572 A0, & .
Seunily deposits 050 7200 187 19150 187 19,1 56
Tutal asscts 34.Hid 3568833 23,638 1AL ATH [ 424 16HE AT4
Linhilithes aml stockbolders® equity
Currend Habilizies:
Cumrent maluritics of noles povable, elaied
party G500 BES B0 i, 5iH) G5 R 3,334 41 534
Axcotnts payable 1627 166, 665 3000 A15.10% A8l 49273
Accmied lahalstics LG FIEATI il 3| HEH 2126 23,15)
Acciued compensation 358 66T Thg TENTH 134 13,72
Capatal kease obligation - - - ] T.0GE
Shaort-term delormed revemae LL T 57,059 715 T3.244 -
short-tenn deformed rent and lease
micerlives 365 37,390 161 16802 -
Tintal cumrent labiliixs 12,469 1,277,324 10,531 1,181,235 4244 434,755
1 ng-term deferned rent and lease incentives ARh 49,788 Xl Hb 50 =l 51,312
l.u1||_H|:tm deferved revenus 2AHMY IO RED 2.y 204 BRD 6,679 AR, 196
Long-emn notes payable, relited party 5500 563,420 5,500 563,420 5,750 B, 350
Lisng-term interest payable, nelated party 183 5917 197 20180 117 13,253
Total lomgz-term Tiabilitees K130 R 003 T.H98 RODOT] 16,157 1655123

Commitments (Note 9

Stsckhobders equity
Convertible preferred stock, no par value,
£2.452 514 shares millioiieed:
Lones A, no Pu.r\.rulut. 2734 334 shares
uharired, wsued and outstanding
(liquidaen value of $2.051) 051 2o 2,051 2i 104 2,051 210,104
Saries B, no par valos, 17,809 598
chares sutherized, vesued and
aristandang (hgusdation value of
S13,425} 13,387 1370, 364 13,387 1371364 I3,387 1371364
Kamies O, nos par valee, 3| 818 [R2
shares suthorized, 11,507,272 shores
xneid amd palstanding (hjulabion
walue of 51 2, 908) (F | 1 308 260 12,771 1308261 12,771 130,261
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Common stock, no par value,
(), CHM OUHE s bames anilhoriced,
11.E93. 98T and 11,707 957 shares
issaed and ouistanding as of
Dhecember 31, 2000 and 204,

respectively Ll 31 5HE 1515 25T 436 136 139,728
Additional gasd-in capital (R 104,386 00 THhAES Hax 45,493
Accamulated viber comprehensive ikome

(Boss} (M) (1.482) 1 02 -

Accamulated deficil (IRZ08)  (1L&.T1S) Q272060 (2.786.952) (33,998 (5482755
Tostal stovkholders’ equity 4,101 A4 306 4200 431169 (3577 (407401
Fotnl labalitses and stockholders exuity 480 3.563.533 FENIEL] A2 AT [[EF] 1682474

Kire acconianiieg noe,
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Statements of Income
CAmoumnls i Thousands)
Unaudited
Year Ended December 31
2010 _ 2% _ 200
Uss JPY Uss Iy LUss Ay
Beveme 36457 3,734,655 2T % 2767 816 6513 TR, 167
Fapenses;
Rescarch and development 152197 2590424 12,274 I BT1988 10,266 1051640
Llenernl and sdminastrative [ 79 B2 5,395 55,103 1E19 191,218
Tulal expenscs 31929 3270, 806 24,660 2527002 14,085 1,442,867
Income from oporations 4518 AT B4 2,350 24ip T4 (1,173 (T4, 690)
Chher meome {expensc
Interest mcome &7 6,803 15 15346 150 256010
Interest enpeme [LFH] (12,87 [IR3) (18,74 (170 {17414)
Cher income (expensc), nel 6 6,556 (B} {04 a0 9.21%
Total other icome {expemsc), net L] [T [Iﬂl (25 014 170 17.414
Imcome belore income ax 4,537 A, TT0 2098 214.9% [ ] (T17,284)
Tmeomse tnx bene fif 4 Al 457 8407 15 | 510 - .
Net incorme AN 913 37 2,113 216455 (1L.002)  (T17,384)
Sev accompaniing soles,

241/271



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000000000000(E30401)
Oooooooooooon

wapony Mmoo s
] 1 AL TERPET TOTCETOIT TNESWIEl L9 #0811 =] TR
_._”_:...._ g nERl i} sl Lk LRETER L LT ILLOWEL el RRCRELD 1T HHLT 0T 7| § Faiuanag] im AN g
1
A PR D] UMD W0 ]
STeall i fsesen (-} [+ (-} - {
[ - (560 - - - - - - - - B3 50 DYERAR SN 3 LI R () ) PARIERIL )
LPL raparr | L VL el A (=) L=k =) =) (=} (&) =}
[T LK = . g . - = = . ¢ = aanam
BT TR TS 6
fcrew il i1 i irewil i1 i -} S S ————
s - - - L Dearea N - N - - - BT A SR R 1y panE o Do)
it -1 -1 - AE -1 &) -1 N
=] - - ir MO = - - - = B NN (1] O 1] [RMTES W O
LR TRl =} (=) LR {0 =} =) = =}
f2f = . = e - . - - = . = sy FMEG 1
A IER) ISR Z0nb Igwomed  d9eeLsn) [JE s k] G ILET) [T
[ 0 LEN | g 16T [0 T R W | b bLC T I FELFELT S0 | ISUIRNAT (E MR EY
TR
FII'E S Aniil) e (2 |
izon il o i =] (=] [B] i1
| - I - - - - - - = - AP HFIEAR 13 AT e el panyes|
IEEFSIT) [ (- - -} =) &) -}
Ll 11T P
T R T
L] i=l 1=} 1=} WLrgeh =) (B 1=}
e - . e pONUED . - P e Sl 20 PR 0T
* LT ATy S0 1 W SOIORI00 1] [RATES WS (0T
i=} 1=} LU i) LE et L] (=) i=h =)
{15100 it s W04 ol
e [ Lra D gt LIS ' AR ORI 1] (LAY O AR
(s i 11 -} 1) (-} (B [-] kg
ri - - - ] WETE - - - - - - I RO L1 SIS L) [MIRE P AL}
[IRTRr i~ -1 (TR B ] i~ i i~}
i | - i ¥ = - 2 " & 2 arsuilnlieas poieg- iy
IMEsLrek 1RIERLr] =k = =k = 5 -1
LLFE [ L1 g e  uepurey S v jor oy Juasagry
P Lorly  USELTREEN ngerl  LECLGEN LIk i ] IFCIEE N {rHITY
[ien'Eh {8667 FE) S It LRUPBEDI  ILLTI TLCLORND L3N BBERL] 10T FELTELT BOOT “| £ Fapuaaag] i acumeg
=my RIESTE] | N daom | .l |y RIAT Y mnnmy RRAT Ry ULy uniury LRITY Y
Ay o) i)
Ty [T Hopy Wi N iy Sy W iy
prnpRiEnay FAOIL Plad i ki) HEELEA LRy

payjpazu)
[y anwps e CEpuEERGY | U SN0y )
GOOT U OROT "1 £ Squuddac] paputy sea),

Apnby S1PIOYHINIS JO SHUIWIIEIS

2421271



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0obDOo0o0oo00boo0gOooo(esoedo1)
oOoooooooooood

Statements of Cash Flows

fAmannts in Thonsands)

Unaudited
YVenr Ended December 31
oin M9 008
Uss JPEY U'ss JPY Uss IPY
Cash Mows Mrom operating activities
Met income 4003 922267 2,113 216455 (712§ (T17,284)
Adjustments W roconca ke net incoms 1o met
cnsh provided by
operniing achivities:
Drepreciation amd amortizabon L T1400 a2 S0620 4 0,2
Amortation of deferred [imancmg costs 17T 1,740 il 3,174 ' 16ET
{lanm) loss from the disposal of ficed
Assets imn (71T L2 #6504 (13 (L331)
Stockshased compensalion 79 LLiTiEE ] 1,329 136,142 1AL 152,225
Amonizstion of premium/diseoant on
marketable securitics 41 4200 17 1,741 (16dy {17312
Changes in operabing asscts and
lanbalilnes:
Agcounts recervalile 1%a) (26.224) (292 24912) (GAZ4y  (BEROTA)
Prepaid expenses and other current
nwsets (%13 (BR.283) R (14,23 (16 (1,630
Agcounts payvable (1449 (148.455) 2,593 263 831 m T3
Accrucd libilsees 1E0T 2E7 548 132) {3 278) {496) [l
Dieferred tax asset [EE T {437.497) = 4 =
Accrued compenssisn (41m (42, 0HN0) 633 [EREE]
eferred renl and lense incentives SR Sk Y ] (13,4911 .
Dheferred revenus (158 (16 1RS) T15 73244 ,67% R4 |96
Secunty deposit 469 (A0 (i) (93220
Net cash provaded by oporating scliviises 5905 [T 7500 TaH 30 (5441 (57370
Cash Mlows from nvesting sctivitics
Purchases of mankctable securitics available
for sale 15004y (1,546,229 (3,524 (391,730 (2, 5200 (255 [48)
Manarities of marketahle seounitics available
for anke 12,462 1. 2TR 656 750 T Bb 13,300 1, 362452
Procecds from the sale of propery omd
eqIpmen ] 1136 15 153 1a? 10,51
Addmiors o property and oqudpment {1411) {144,541 (59} {419 (177 (18131}
Mot cash wsed in investing activities {4.812) [T (3,640} TEREETET 10,710 1,087,132
Cash Mows Mrom fGnancing aciivithes
Proceeds Iram ssuaioe of common slock 45 A6 (5] 65565 | 12
Repavmeent of capitnl lease chhgations - - LLE 17 06K (LT [EXLE]
et cash provided by {used in) fmancing
pelivilics 45 AR 53 {512) (&7} [8.0012)
Imcrense i cish and cash cqmvalenis 1.938 108, 525 3 A ERER L] 5.1%2 S50, 844
Canhy andd cash equivalents - begimning of
s 12,059 1,235,533 5213 41339 3,031 AT
Cash and cash equivilents - eod of wear 13,997 1 433,852 12,059 1,235.313 B213 1,330
Supplementnl disclosure
Cashi paid For inferest 1] ) 48R 145 14.853
Kee accompanying soles
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L. Summary of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Owerview

Acucela Inc. (the Company) is a clinical-stage specialty pharmaceutical company focused on
leveraging promising science in visual cvele modulation (VCM) o develop new methods for
treating blinding eve diseases that affect tens of millions of people worldwide. The
Company’s orally delivered VOM compounds, which selectively rget cells within the reting
to protect visual acuity, have the potential o be used to weat several devastating eye diseases,
including dry age-related macular degeneration (dry AMD), far which there is curmently no
treatment options for patients, diabetic retinopathy, retinopathy of prematunty and Stargardt
disease. The Company was founded in 2002 by Ryo Kubota, M., PhD, the chairman,
chiel executive officer and president, who is a pioneer in the ophthalmology field and the
discoverer of the gene that causes glaucoma.

In 2010, the Company and Otsuka Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. (Orsuka) entered into a defininve
agreement o co-develop OPA-6566, Otsuka’s compound for the meatment of glavcoma
OPA-6566 s currently in preclinical development.

In 2010, the Company received Fast Track designation from the US. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) for ACU-4429_ an investigational oral tremment for drv AMD.

In 2008, the Company and (hsuka. entered into a defimitive agreement to co-develop
ACLI-4429, the Company's lead compound for dry AMD. ACU-4429 15 currently in Phase 11
clinical development in the United States.

In 2008, the Company and Otsuka also entered into a definitive agreement 1o co-develop
Rebamipide ophthalmic suspension (Rebamipide), Otsuka’s product candidate for the
treatment of dry eye. Rebamipide is currently in Phase I clinical development in the United
States,

Changes in Accounting Policy for the Adoption of Accounting Standards Update
2009-13

In October 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Stamdards Update (ASU) 2000-13, Muliple-Deliverable Reveme Arrangemenis, which
modifies the accounting for multiple-element arrangements pursuant 1o FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 605-25, Muliple Element Arrangements. ASU 2009-13 is
effective on a prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified
in fiscal years begimning on or after June 15, 20010, An election to adopt on a reroactive basis
is permitted, The Company made such an election and retroactively applied the provisions of
ASU 2009-13 to all revenue arrangements since the inception of the Company as the election
will provide for better comparability of financial information in future periods. The effect on
the Company’s fimancial statements as a result of changing s accounting policy was o
reduce the accumulated deficnt as of January 1, 2009, by $4,679,000,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted n the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates
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and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
aceompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates,

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent evenis and transactions for potential recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements through June 21, 2011, the day the financial
statements were available for issuance,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all short-term, highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash equivalents consist of money
market funds, municipal honds, commercial paper, and corporate debt securities as of
December 31, 20010 and 2009,

Investmenis

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, investments are composed of commercial paper,
corporate debt secuntics, municipal bonds, certificates of deposit, and asset-backed securities,
Investments with maturities berween three months and one vear at the date of purchase are
classified as short-term  investments. The Company considers s investments as
available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value as of each balance
sheet date based on market quotes, and unrealized gains and losses are reflected as a net
amount under the caption of accumulated other comprehensive incomae (loss).

The Company pericdically evaluates whether deelines in fair values of its investments
below their cost are other-than-temporary. This evaluation consists of several qualitative
and quantitative factors regarding the severity and duration of the unrealized loss as well as
whether it 18 more likely than not the Company will hold the investment until recovery of
its amortized cost basis. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged 10 be
other-than-temporary are recorded within the statements of income under the caption other
income (expensel,

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts réeceivable as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consist of amounts
due from Otsuka. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2010
and 2009, as management believes all outsianding amounts will be paid based on iis
contractual armngement with Otsuka and history of successful collections,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The Company
provides for depreciation of equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of
five years, Leaschold improvements are stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis

owver the shorer of the lease term or estimated useful life of the assets.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
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Long-lived assets held for use are subject 1o an impairment assessment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable, I the
cammying value is no longer recoverable based upon the undiscounted future cash flows of the
asset, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrving amount and the
fair value of the asset, The Company has recorded no imparment charges for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009,

Revenue Recognition

The Company's business strategy includes entering imto collaborative agreements with
pharmacentical companies for the development and commercialization of the Company’s
product candidates, The terms of the agreements may include nonrefundable license fees,
funding of research and development activities, payments based upon achievement of
development milestones, payments based upon achievement of revenue milestones, and
rovalties on product sales. The Company recognizes revenue when four basic criteria have
been met: (a) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (b) delivery has occurred or
services rendered; () the fee is fixed or determinable; and (d) collectability is reasonably
assured.

Mufriple Element Arrangemenis

The Company's collaborative agreements are multiple clement arrangements that must be
analvzed to idennfy the deliverables included i the agreements and determine if the
deliverables qualify as separate units of accounting. Deliverables are considered a separate
unit of accounting when all of the following criteria are met: (i) the delivered item has value
to the customer on a standalone basis and (i) if the amangement includes a general right of
retum relative 1 the delivered item, and the delivery or performance of the undelivered item
is considered prabable and substantially in the Company's control. There are no rights of
retrn in the Company’s collabormive agreements,

Amangement consideration 15 allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their
relative selling price. The Company follows a hierarchy to determine the selling price for
each unit of accounting, determining first iF there is vendorspecific objective evidence
{(VSOE) of fair value (the price a1 which the goods or services are regularly sold by the
Company on a standalone basis). If VSOE of fair value is not available, third-panty evidence
(TPE) of vendors selling similar goods or services to similarly situated customers on a
standalone basis 1s used to establish fair value, If netther VSOE nor TPE of fair value exists,
the Company uses its best estimate of the selling price for that unit of accounting, The
Company's best estimate of selling price represents the price at which the Company would
transact if the unit of accounting were sold by the Company regularly on a standalone basis.

The Company considers market condinons and entity-specific factors when estimating the
selling price, Once the selling price for each unit of accounting has been established, the
consideration received is allocated among the units of accounting based on their relative
selling price, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applied to each of the
separate units. The amount of arangement consideration allocable to a delivered item that is
a separate wnil of accounting is limited 1w arcangement consideration that is fixed or
determinable. Payments that are contingent upon the occurrence of future events that are not
exclusively within the control of the Company are excluded from the allocable arrangement
consideration until the contingeney is resolved.
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When the Company has continuing performance obligations, revenue is recognized using one
of two methods. Where the Company is able to estimate the wotal amount of services under a
unit of accouning and such performance obligations are provided on a best-efforts basis,
revenue is recognized wsing a proportional performance model. Costs incurred to date
compared 1o total expected costs are used to determine proportional performance, as this is
considered 10 be representative of the delivery of outputs, Changes in estimates of 1otal
expected costs are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimates. When the Company
cannot reasonably estimate the total amount of service that is to be performed but can
reasonably estimate when the performance obligation ceases or becomes imconsequential, a
time-based method 15 used to recognize revenue, Under the time-based method, revenoe is
recognized ratably over the estimated performance period of the unit of accounting, but not
befare the removal of any contingencies. If the Company cannot reasonably estimate when
the Company's performance obligation either ceases or becomes inconsequential and
perfunctory, then revenue is deferred until the Company can reasonably estimate when the
performance obligation ceases or becomes inconsequential and perfunctory. Revenue is then
recognized over the remaining estimated period of performance, Significant management
judgment is required in determining the level of effont required and the period over which the
Company 15 expected to complete the Company’s performance obligations under each unit of
accounting,

Subsranitive Milestone Payments

The Company’s collaboration agreements contain substantive milestones, A substantive
milestone s defined as an event that meets the following conditions: (i) there is substantive
uncertainty on the date the amrangement is entered imto about whether the evemt will be
achieved; (i) achievement of the event is based in whole, or in part, on either the Company s
performance or a specific outcome resulting from the Company’s performance; and (iii)
achievement of the event results in additional payment due to the Company. For a milestone
to be considered substantive, the pavment associated with its achievement must have all of
the following charactenstics: (1) relate solely 1w the Company’s past performance; (i) be
reasonable, relative to all of the deliverables and payvment terms in the arrangement; and (i)
be commensurate with either the Company's effort required to achieve the milestone or the
enhanced value of the delivered item{s) as a result of the milestone achievement.

Substantive milestone payments are recognized upon achievement of the milestone only if all
of the previous conditions are met and the milestone pavments are nonrefundable,
Determination as o whether a payment meets the aforementioned conditions involves
management's judgment. The Company has evaluated the nature of its armangements and has
elected to make a policy election to apply the milestone methed where appropriate for its
arrangements

If any of the aforementioned conditions are not met, the resulting payment would not be
considered a substantive milestone, and therefore, the resulting payment would be determined
to be part of the allocable arrangement consideration and would be recognized as revenue as
such performance obligations are performed wnder either the proportional performance or
time-based methods, as apphcable, and in accordance with the policies as deseribed above,
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Deferved Revenue

Amounts received prior to satisfying the above revenue recognition criteria are recorded as
deterred revenue.

Income Taxes

The Company recogmizes deferred tax assets and liabilines for the expected Future tax
consequences of events that have already been recognized in the financial sttements or wx
retumns. In addition, the Company has not recognized the excess tax benefits associated with
certain share-based payments. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on the difference
between financial statement carrving amounts and the tax basis of assets and liahilities,
operating loss, and tax credit carryvforwards and are measured using enacted tax raes
expected to be in effect in the vears the differences or carryforwards are anticipated to be
recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is established when the Company believes that it
is more likely than not that benefits of the deferred wx assets will not be realized.

Stock-Basced Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based on the estimated fair
vilue of the equity award and is recognized as expense. less estimated forfeitures, over the
requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. Equity awards generally vest
and become exercisable over a four-year period, with 25% vesting after ane year and 148
vesting each month thereafter, The fair value of each equity award 15 estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Company recognizes stock-based
compensation expense on a straight=line method. Determining the fair value of stock-based
awards at the grant date requires judgment, including estimating the expected volatility of its
stock, expected term, risk-free interest rate, and expected dividends.

Foapected Ferm

The Company's expectad terim used in the option-pricing model represents the period that the
Company's stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding and is determined based on
the simplified method as identified in ASC 718, The simplified method uses a simple average
of the vesting and origmal contractual terms of the option, We have continued to use the
simplified methed 1o determine the expected option lerm since our stock option exercise
experience does not provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the expected option
term,

Fxpected Volatifine

The Company’s volaility factor is estimated uwsing comparable public company siock
volatility.

Fxpecied Dividemd

The Company has never patd cash dividends and has no presemt intention to pav cash
dividends in the future, and as a result, the expected dividend 15 zero,
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Risk-Free fmerest Raie

The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation model on
the implied yield currently available on US. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent
term. Where the expected term of the Company’s stock-based awards does not correspond
with the term for which an interest rate is quoted, the Company performs a straght-line
interpolation to determine the rate from the available term maturities,

The fair value of stock options granted for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and applied the following
AEEUMptions:

2om 2009
Rask-free micresd ralbes 13% 1.8% L.1% 3.4%
Expected life 63 vears & 3-07 venrs
Dividend vield -%a L1
Lapected velahlily G5 -6

Research and Development Costs

Rescarch and development costs include salaries, fees paid 1o external service providers and
contract research organizations W conduct research and development activities, laboratory
supplies, license fees, consulting fees, and travel, Research and development costs are
expensed as incurred. Cerin indirect expenses are allocated between research and
development and general and administrative expenses based on a reasonable allocation
method,

Fatent and Legal Costs

Costs relating 1o filing, pursuing, and defending patent applications are expensed as incurred
to general and administrative costs, Other legal costs are expensed as incurred w0 general and
administrative costs,

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative imstruments in accordance with ASC 815, Derivaiives
airel Hedging, which esiablishes aceounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments
and hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other financial
instruments or contracts, The Company also considers ASC 815, which provides enteria for
determimning whether freestanding contracts that are settled in a company’s own stock, should
be designated as an equily instrument, an asset o as a liability under ASC 815,

The Company evaluated the conversion feature embedded in its series A, B and C convertible
preferred stock based on the criteria of ASC 815 to determine whether the conversion feature
wonld be required w be bifurcated from the prefermed stock and accounted for separately as a
denvative, Based on management’s evaluation, the embedded conversion feature does not
require bifurcation and derivative accounting,

The Company evaluated the conversion features embedded in its convertible notes based on
the entena of ASC 815 1o determine whether the conversion features would be required 1o be
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bifurcated from the note payable and accounted for separately as derivatives, Based on
management's evaluation, the embedded conversion feature requires bifurcation and
derivative accounting; however, the fair value of the derivative since inception is immaterial.

Reclassifications

Certain prior pericd balances have been reclassified in order 1w conform to the curment period
presentation.

2. Concentration of Risk

During 2010 and 2009, all of the Company's revenues were derived from the collaboration
agreements with Chsuka.

3. Collaboration and License Agreements
ACE 4429 Collahoration

In 2008, the Company and Otsuka entered into a definitive agreement to co-develop and
commercialize ACLU-4429 for the dry form of AMD and for other potential indications in the
United States, Canada, and Mexico (Shared Territory). The Company retained all rights in
Europe, South America, Central America, the Caribbean, and Africa (Acucela Territory), and
Osuka owns the exclusive development and commercialization rights to the compound in
Asia, the Middle East, and selected markets in the rest of the world ((hsuka Terntory). A
55,000,000 nonrefundable up-front license fee was paid by Otsuka upon signing,

Under the agreement, Orsuka will fund all development activities in the Shared Territory
through Phase 11, up to $40,000,000. If the Phase Il development costs exceed $40,000,000,
Osuka may. at its sole discretion, either (i) terminate the agreement or (il) continue the
agreement and share equally with the Company all Phase Il development costs in excess of
540,000,000, Phase 11 costs are 1o be shared equally. In addition, the Company has the
potential to receive development milestones totaling 582 500000, The co-development
portion of the agreement is govemned by a Joint Development Committee (JDC).

Oisuka will fund the Company’s share of the Phase 11 development costs as well as any
Phase 11 development costs for which the Company 15 responsible in the form of a secured
promissory note, The promissory note provides that (ap interest will acerue daily and be
calculated on the basis of 360 davs per year and be pavable on all amounts advanced to the
Company from the date of advance uniil paid im full; {(b) unpaid interest will compound
annually; (¢) the applicable interest rate will be adjusted quarterly 1o reflect the then-effective
rate equal to the three-month London InerBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) in the “Money Rates”
column of e Wall Steeet Journal as of the first business day of cach calendar quarter, plus
3%, and (d) all amounts are payable in United States dollars.

The loan is repayable only in the event that future proceeds are generated by the products
under the collaboration,

The agreement includes a security interest agreement that grams Otsuka a first priority

interest on the Company's entire interests in net profits and royalty payments, and on the
Company's entire interests in ownership of the related collaboration compounds and
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collaboration products and the underlying intellectual property rights, both in the Shared
Territory and the Acucela Territory,

As the agreement contains elements of funded development, the Company evaluated the
agreement under ASC 730-20, Nesearch amd Development Arvangemends, 1o determne if the
Company s obligation to Otsuka should be accounted for as a lability to repay a loan or as an
obligation 1o perform contraciual services. To conclude that a liability o repay a loan does
not exist, the transfer of the financial risk invelved with research and development from the
Company to Otsuka must be substantive and genuine. The Company determimed that s
obligation to Ofsuka should be accounted for as an obligation to perform contractual services
because repayment depends solely on the resulis of development having future economic
benefiL.

Upon commercialization, the parties mav co-promote the product in the Shared Territory and
equally share all expenses and profits from sales of the product in the Shared Termitory, The
Company may exercise ity option 1o co-promote in the Shared Territory on a
country-by-country basis. If the Company does not elect to co-promote in a country of
countries in the Shared Territory, Otsuka shall pay the Company royalties on the annual,
agpregate net sales of collaboration products im the country or countries in the Shared
Temritory for which the Company did not elect o participate in co-promotion, Each party
shall pay the other party a rovalty of 2% on annual, ageregate net sales of collaboration
products in their sole wermitories, In addition, the Company has the potential o receive net
sales milestones totaling $175,000,000, The co-promotion arrangement is governed by a Joint
Commercialization Committee (JOC),

The agreement also ncludes a three-year research program (the Research Program), the
purpose of which is 10 identify a second indication for the lead collaborative compound and
to conduct development on a backup compound for the collaborative compound. During the
three-year period, Otsuka will pay the Company 55,000,000 per vear, payable on a quarterly
basis, The agreement also provides Otsuka with a right of first negotiation to license new
compounds discovered or developed by the Company (independent of the collaboration
activities) during the agreement term.

The Company's agreement with Otsuka is a multiple element armangement and the Company
has determined ihat the elements within the armangement consist of the license, the research
program, development, and co-promation

The license granted 1o Otsuka was determined to be a separate unit of accouming because it
has value to Otsuka on a standalone basis.

Because (Msuka may license and develop the imellectual propery independent of the
development or research program services that are to be provided by the Company, the
Company conducted a net present value (NPV) valuation of the license and it was determined
that the estimated standalone selling price for the license at inception of the agreement
exceeded the arrangement consideration received for the license fee, Since the value assigned
to a delivered element cannot exceed the arrangement consideration, the armangement
consideration ol $5,000,000 was assigned to the license,

The activities associated with developmemt meet the criterion for a separate unit of
accounting since these services have value to Otsuka on a standalone basis. The Company
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has determined that the fees charged for the development services are competitive with the
price other third-party vendors charge for similar development services. Revenue from
development efforts is recognized as services are performed. In 2010 and 2009, the Company
recogmized 15380000 and %14,483,000, respectively, of revenue associated with
development activities,

The activities associated with the research program meet the criterion for a separate unit of
accounting since these services have value to Otsuka on a standalone basis. The types of
services contemplated under the research program may be performed by a third party. The
Company has determined that the fees charged for the research services are competitive with
the price other third-party vendors charge for similar research services. TPE of the selling
price for the research program is 515,000,000, which equals the agreement consideration,
Revenue from the research activities is recognized under a proportional performance model.
In 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized 53,138,000 and %4_285000, respectively, of
revenue associated with research activities. As of December 31, 2000 and 2009, 5557,000
and 571 5,000, respectively, remains as deferred revenue associated with research activities,

The development and net sales milestones in the arrangement were evaluated and determined
to meet the criteria of a milestone under ASU 2010-17. The Company recognizes
consideration that 13 contingent upon achievement of a substantive milestone in its entirety in
the period in which the milestone is achieved. No development or net sales milestones were
achieved during the years ended December 31, 20010 or 2009,

Rebamipide Collaboration

In 2008, the Company and Cdsuka entered into a defimitive agreement to co-develop
Rebamipide, Onsuka's propretary compound for the weamment of dry eve. Under the
agreement, the parties will collaborate in the clinical development efforts for Rebamipida in
the United States. Otsuka paid the Company a 32,000,000 up-front payment, and the
Company has the potential to receive clinical development milestones totaling 530,000, 000,
and rovalties on net sales of the product in the United States and the Evropean Umion, Under
the agreement, Otsuka shall be responsible for  all  clinical  development  and
commercialization expenses. Upon regulatory filing, the parties may negotiate the terms
under which the Company may co-promote Rebamipide with Otsuka in the United States.

The Company evaluated the agreement and determined that the clinical development
represented the only deliverable under the arrangement. Revenue from clinical development
efforts is recognized as services are performed. During 2010 and 2009, the Company
recognized $15067000 and 38250000, respectively, of revenue associated with the
Rebamipide clinical development activities. The development milestones in the agreement
were evaluated and determined to meet the cnitenia of a milestone under ASU 2010-17. The
Company recognizes consideration that is contingent upon achievement of a substantive
milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. No development
milestones were achieved during the vears ended December 31, 2010 ar 2009,

The 2,000,000 up-front payment by Otsuka to the Company 15 subject to refund upon
insolvency, material breach or upon the termination of Dr, Kubota's services o the Company.
Due to the refund provisions in the agreement, the Company classified the 52,000,000
payment as deferred revenue at December 31, 2010 and 2009, When the appropriate refund
provisions are satisfied, the Company will recognize the payment as revenue.
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(3P A-6566 Collaboration

In 2010, the Company and Oisuka entered into a definitive agreement to develop OPA-G566,
Otsuka's proprietary compound for the treatment of glavcoma. The agreement grants the
Company an opt-in right to co-develop and co-promote OPA-6566 in the United States. Until
the Company exercises its opt-in right, Otsuka will have sole responsibility for developmient
activities and costs. Upon exercise of the opt-in right, Otsuka grants the Company additional
opt-in rights which include: (1) the right to co-develop and co-promote OPA-6366 for
ophthalmological indications in the United Staves other than for glaucoma; (2) the right o
co-develop and co-promote new formulations of OPA-6566 for glaucoma in the United
Staes; and (3) a right of first negoetiation o co-develop and co-promote other adenosine A2a
receptor agonist compounds for the weament of oplthalmologic diseases in the United
States.

The Company evaluated the agreement and determined that the development represented the
only deliverable under the amangement, Revenue from development efforts is recognized as
services are performed. During 2010, the Company recognized £652.000 of revenue in
performance of the agreement.

4.  Short-Term Investments and Cash Equivalents

Shori-term mvestments and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consisted of
the following (in thousands):

Diewember 31, 2010

I'ypes of secunty.

Grass Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Amoriiration Cist Holding Guins  Halding Lasses Vil

Conumerncial paper b 1.3 5 - & iy 4% 1400
Coapodate debt secunties 1.R08 ] 1.8
Mumicapal bonmds o, By - LERR 4 3TH
Certificates of deposl i - - 1)
Muoney market fund 1,948 - - 1944
H Nl Gl 5 - 5 [EXTIE 1626
Dewember 31, 200%
Giross Gross
Ulnirialized Unrealived Falr
Amoriieation Cost Holding Gains  Halding Losses Yialue
Iypos ol scoumnby

Coammeercinl paper 5 3,414 g 1 g 5 3425
Corporate debt securities 1,501 1.1
Asmsct-backodl securitics 758 158
Muoney market fumd 92460 9246
5 15,519 5 i & 3 15330

All investment securities held at December 31, 2010 and 2009, mature within twelve months.
The sale of securities is identified using the specific identification method, There are no
realized pains or losses for the perieds presented.

5. Fair Value Measurements

Financial asscts are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:
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Level | - quoted prices in active markets for identical assers and liabilities

Level 2 observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities

Level 3 unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data available,
which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions

The Company’s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, were as follows (in thousands):

Decemleer 31, 2011 -
Level 1 Level 3 Level 3 Toal
Cash equivalenis:
Moncy market Fumds 5 1948 5 = 5 = 5 1948
Municapal bomds - 1,080 - 1,830
Commereial papar - 150 - 150
Corpomie debl secunties = i 804 - 1,504
5 1,948 5 A054 5 - $ hA(LH
Short=term imveslmenis:
Conwmercial paper 5 5 1080 § % LS
Corpoase debl weantics - i - s
Municapal bomds - LR - 3R
Certificates of deposat P - - 200
5 I 8 504 5 5 5804
December 31, 2IHF
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Toial
Cashi cajunivalenis;
Money naarket fumids 3 b46 % 5 L3 0240
Conmmetcial paper L1215 12125
Corporntie debt secuntics 1,500 I B0
5 10,471 3 1 B § & 12,172
Short-term imvestments:
Commerncial paper 5 1,200 - - H L2 2,200
Lorpomic dehl sooantios 10} (L1
Assefhacked secunbies T5R T58
g 2,200 3 A58 3 5 1058

The Company's fixed income mvestment securities are valued using the market approach.
6. Properiy and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consist of the following (in

thousands):
December 31

aln Pl
Lakratory equipment 5 2178 5 1,714
Ol furmiture and equipment ELH a7
Lenschosll improvensents 1,791 1,161

4335 2982
Less aeeumulated depreciation and amomization (2375) 1,70
Property and equipmen, net 5 [RLE] 4 LT3
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The depreciation and amortization expense recorded for the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, was 5697000 and $382 000, respectively.

7. Motes Payable

Om May 29, 2006, the Company completed a private placement of 512,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of unsecured promissory notes, of which 33,250,000, 53,250,000, and
85,500,000 were due on August 31, 2009, June 30, 2010, and November 30, 2012,
respectively. The maturity dates of the notes are extended automatically upon extension of the
note holders” matrity of their investment funds. The notes bear interest at 1% per annum,
pavahle upon matunty,

On August 31, 2009, the Company renegotiated the terms of the unsecured promissory notes
due on August 31, 2009 The original matunity dates were extended for a period of one year
to August 31, 2010, and the interest rate for the extended period was increased from 1% per
annem (o 1.2% per aonum. The repayment terms were modified to require immediate
payment of all interest from May 29, 2006 to August 31, 2010,

On June 30, 2010, the Company also renegotizted the terms of the unsecured promissory
notes due on June 30, 20010. The original maturity dates were extended for a period of one
wear to June 30, 2001, and the interest rate for the extended period was increased from 1.0%
per annum ta 1,05% per annum, All interest was paid through the end of the rencgotiated
term of the note,

On August 31, 2010, the Company renegotiated the terms of the unsecured promissory notes
due on August 31, 2000, The maturity dates were extended for a period of one year to
August 31, 2011, and the interest rate for the extended period was decreased from 1.2% per
annum 1o 1.02% per annom, All interest was paid through the end of the renegotiated term of
the noes.

Motes payable due in one vear or less of $6,500,00M and corresponding prepaid interest
expense of 539,000 have been classificd as current matunitics of notes payable and prepaid
expense, respectively, i the balance sheets. Notes pavable due in excess of one year of
S5,500,000 and corresponding interest pavable of $253 000 have been classified as long-term
notes pavable and fong-term interest payable, respectively, in the balance sheets. The Company
will be notified within ™ days from the maturnty date if the notes will be automatically
extended.

The notes payable automatically conven into shares of common stwock upon the closing of a
firm commitment underwritten public offering at a price of not less than 53.50 per share and
aggregate net proceeds of not less than $25, 000,000, The number of shares issued upon
comversion 15 determined by dividing the principal of the note by 53,30, which is subject to
adjustment for any subsequent recapitalizations, stock combinations, stock dividends, or
stock splits.

7.  Motes Payable (continued)

In the event of a hiquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the Company, the assets and funds
of the Company shall be distributed such thmt the note holders are paid all outstanding
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principal and imerest under the notes in the same priority as the holders of the Company's
preferred siock are paid the liquidation distribution prior and m preference to any distribution
to the holders of common stock. 1f the assets available for distribution among the holders of
preferred stock and notes are insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of their
respective higquidation  preference, then the assets and surplus funds that remain legally
available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the holders of preferred stock
and notes in proportion to the preferential amount each holder would otherwise be entitled
to receive.

In the event that a sale of the Company or a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets,
of upon a certain merger or consolidation transaction, is consummated prior 1o the maturity
date (Sales Transaction), the note holders have the fallowing opticns:

*  The entire unpaid principal amounts of the notes and accrued interest thereon are paid
upon the closing of such transaction,

»  The notes are redeemed for an amount in cash equal to the amount 1o which the note
holders would have been entitled pursuant 1o the terms of such transaction, if, instead of
the notes, the note holders held a number of shares of common stock as calculated in the
same manner as the conversion upon public offering.

*  The notes are converted into shares of Senes C preferred stock. The number of shares
issued upon conversion 15 determined by dividing the unpaid principal of the notes by
the original issue price of the Series C preferred stock of S1.10,

The Company evaluated the conversion features embedded in the notes payable and based on
the eriteria of ASC 815 it was determined that the conversion features should be bifurcated
from the notes payable and accounted for separately as denvatives. The conversion feature
which occurs upon the closing of a firm commitment underwritten public offering was
evaluated and it was detenmined it met cenain criteria which eliminaed the need for it 1o be
accounted for separately. The conversion feature which occurs if the Company is sold was
evaluated and it was determined that this derivative should be accounted for separately because
the halder has the option to have the debi settled in cash based on the value of the Company's
common stock, This derivative is recorded at its fair value with changes in fair value
recognized as other income or expense over the period it is outstanding. The fair value of this
derivative since inception has been immaterial.

SBI Holdings, Ing., the holder of the notes and an investor in the Company, received payment
for interest on the unsecured promissory notes of S200,000 and $145,000 in 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Yoshitaka Kitao, a director, is the representative director and chief executive
officer of SBI Holdings, Inc.

8. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had net eperating loss carryforwards of 517,402,000
and research and development tax eredit carryforwards of 51,600,000, The carryforwards are
available to offset future tax liabilities. The net operating loss carryforwards will begin to
expire from 2023 o 2029 and the research and development tax credits expire from 2022 to
2027, Unhzatwon of net operating losses may be subject 1o ownership change himitations
established by Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 382, The annual limitation may result in
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the expiration of net operating loss carryforwards before they can be utilized. During the year
ended December 31, 20010 as a result of an analysis of the impact of a previous ownership
change, the Company reduced its net operating loss camyforwards by 3705000
{approximately $240,000 in tax benefits) to reflect limitation of the NOL usage as a result of
IRC Section 382,

Deferred tax assets arise from temporary differences between financial and tax reporting. The
Company will establish a valuation allowance if either it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax asset will expire before the Company 15 able to realize their benefits, or the
future deductibility is uncertain. Periodically, the valuation allowance is reviewed and
adjusted based on management’s assessments of realizable deferred tax assets. Duning the
vear ended December 31, 2010, the Company reduced its valuation allowance because it
believes that it 15 more likely than not that a portion of its deferred tax assets will be realized.
A reduction in the valuation allowance of 54,466,000 is reflected as a reduction to income tax
expense. As of December 31, 2009, the Company provided for a full valuation allowance to
offset its deferred tax assets due 1o the uncenainty of realizing the benefits of the deferred 1ax
assets.

Deferred tax assets for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, are as follows (in

thowsands):
December 31
010 200
Dieferred inx asseis:
Met operuting s camylorwanks % 5M7 - i, 2648
Research ond development tax credil carmy forwands 1, i 1,60k
e feamed revenias Hat B
ke ferred rem 26l I75
Froperty andl equipment 171 125
Compensalion 112 123
Tistal K912 FNET]
Tess valantion alloovance (4460} (9. 154)
Met defermed tan asact 3 4,466 4
Reporied as
Chimneml deferreil lax asset % 494 1
Langs=temm deferred nx assct 3972
Met defermed meome lax nssel 5 4 it 5

The cument and long-term components of the 2010 valuation allowance are 5648000 and
S3. 818,000, respectively,

During 2010 and 2009, the Company had taxable income which was offset by the utilization
of the net operating loss carryforwards and in 2000 and 2009 the alternative minimum tax

was offset by utilizing the research and development tax credits.

The components of the tax provisions are as follows {in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

i 2oi
Chuirrent tanes L3 §
Dicforred laxes i Aty {15%
Toital 5 (4, 466§ 3 (L]
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The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income
tax rate is as follows:

Year Embed Decomber 31

2000 2HIP
Sintulory male 34.0% 1502
Roeshuctian of 1he valuation allewance {9H A% A
Unlizntion of loss eorry forwands 37.7%) {38 2%5)
Kk eonmpernsation 12% 3 3%
Research ereduis 0% {0.7%3)
Oither, net 6% 1094
Effective tnx mie {9H.3%) (06260

The Company files its imcome tax return in the LS. federal junsdiction. The Company 15 no
longer subject to S, federal 1ax examinations by tax authorities for the yvears before 2007,
However, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) could adjust cemain unused tax attributes
camried forward from tax vears prior to 2007, The Company does not file state income tax
remms

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncenain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the ax position will be sustained on examination by the 1axing authorities,
based on the techmical merits of the positon. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater
than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate semlement. However, there are no
material unrecogmzed lax benelits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, Furthermore, the
Company does not anticipate any significant changes in its unrecognized tax benefits over the
next twelve months.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to s labilites for uncertain tax
positions in income tax expense. However, during the yvears ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, the Company did not have any accrued interest or penalties associated with any
unrecognized 1ax benefits.

9, Commitments
Leases

The Company leases laboratory and corporate office space, and rents equipment under
noncancelable operating leases expiring through 2015, The lease agreement for the laboratory
facility includes two three-vear remewal options, and the lease for the corporate office
includes one three-year renewal option. Lease incentives are recognized as a liability and
amortized to rent expense over the term of the lease, Mimmum rent payments under
operating leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease including
any periods of free rent and reduced rent.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases (with wtial or
remaining lease terms in excess of one year) as of December 31, 2010, are as follows (in
thousands):

2001 5 1,107
a2 Th
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i 475
2004 469
i T
Total minionom lease payments 5 2503

Rent expense was 8997 000 and $530,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectively,

10, Stockholders” Equity

Common Stock

The Company has 60,000,000 shares of commaon stock authorized without par value.
Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has 52,452,514 shares of preferred stock authorized without par value, The
preferred stock 15 issuable i one or more series, each with such designations, rights,
qualifications, limitations, and restrictions as the Board of Directors of the Company may
determing at the time of issuance, The Company has designated 2,734,334, 17,899 9958, and
31,818,182 shares as Series A, Series B, and Series C preferred stock, respectively, with the
following terms:

(enversion

Each share of Series A and B preferred stock is convertible at any time after issuance at the
option of the holder into such number of common stock shares as is determined by dividing
5025 by the conversion price in effect at the time of conversion. The original conversion
price of 30.75 will be adjsted for any subsequent recapitalizations, stock combinations,
stock dividends, or stock splits.

Each share of Series C preferred stock is conventible at any time after issuance at the option
of the holder into such number of commaon stock shares as is determined by dividing $1.10 by
the conversion price in effect at the time of conversion. The original conversion price of
5330 will be adjusted for any subsequent recapitalizations, stock combinations, stock
dividends, or stock splits.

Shares of Secries A, B, and C preferred stock automatically convert into shares of common
stock upon the closing of a firm commitment underwritten public offering at a price of not
less than 33 50 per share and aggregate net proceeds of not less than $25 000 000

1 fpraicicatsons

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, winding-up of the Company, sale of the Company
or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or upon a certain merger or consolidation
transaction, the holders of Series A and B preferred stock will be entitled to receive, prior and
n preference to any distnbution of any of the assets of the Company o the holders of
commaon stock, the amount of 3075 per share plus an amoont equal to all declared but unpaid
dividends of the Series A and B preferred stock. The holders of Series C preferred stock will
be entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the
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Company to the holders of common stock, the amount of $1,10 per share, plus an amount
egual o all declared but unpaid dividends of the Series C preferred stock,

1f the assets available for distribution among the holders of Senes A, B, and C preferred stock
and promissory notes shall be insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of their
respective hquidation preference, then the entire assels and surplus funds then remaining
legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably among the holders of Series A, B,
and C preferred stock and promissory notes in proportion to the preferential amount each
holder would otherwise be entitled o receive. Upon completion of required preferential
distributions, amy remaining assets of the Company available for dismbution shall be
distributed among the holders of common stock.

hivideris

The holders of Series A, B, and C preferred stock are entitled to receive dividends when and
a5 declared by the Board of Directors, in preference to any declaration or payment of any
dividend on the common stock of the Company. Such diidends are not cuomulative.

Verting

Each share of Series A, B, and C preferred stock has one vote for each full share of commaon
stock into which its respective shares of preferred stock could be converted on the record date
for the vote, The Company must receive an affirmative vote or wntten consent from a
majority of the preferred Series A, Series B, or Series C stockholders, voling as a separate
class, for any change in the number of authorized preferred shares; changes in the preferences,
rights, privileges, or powers of the preferred stockholders; or sale, merger or consolidation in
which the holders of the Company's capital stock retain less than 30% of the voting power
after the transaction,

11. Stock Based Compensation
Stock Chwion Plan

In 2002, the Board of Dircctors adopted and approved the 2002 Stock Option and Restricted
Stock Plan (the Plan), which provides for the issuance of nongualified and incentive siock
options to employees and consultants 1o acquire shares of common stock. The Board of
Directors has reserved 2,000,000 shares of common stock to be issued in conjunction with the
Plan. The term of each option 15 ten years, Equity awards generally vest and become
exercisable over a four-year period, with 25% vesting afier one year and 1/48 vesting each
month thereafter. The option agreements include restrictions on the sale of shares acquired
by the exercise of options.

The Company’s stock option activity for the vears ended December 31, 2000 and 2009, is
summanzed as follows;

Namberof  Welghted-Average
Shares Avallable  Oprien Shares  Exercise Price of Dptkoms

for Girami Chults tanalimg Option Shares Exrrcisahle

Ralance at January 1, 3009 1. 402,74 ERA,TET 1.0 430,949
Ciamnled AT N T .23
Excroised i Ll 30y 0,4
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Frafeiied 200471 AT 242
Balnnce ai December 31, 204 1124202 113,996 127 Ao, 00
Cinamted (238000 LRI 497
Excrcised = [E R .50
Foarfiled 307 (2130 Th 1
Halames al December 31, 20010 LA 129 ORI TH 311 ELEN TR

The weighted-average exercise price of exercisable options at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
was 52.09 and £1.11, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31,
2000 and 2009, was $339, 000 and 321,000, respectively,

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
was 5977,000 and 51,826,000, respectively.

The aggregate intninsic value of stock options exercisable at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
was 3864,000 and 51,162,000, respectively,

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted in 2010 and 2009 was $2.94 and
$2.11, respectively.

Information concerming owtstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2000 and 2009,
15 summarized as follows:

December 31, 2000

Welghted-Average
Remabnimng
Exercvise Number of Contractunl Life Options
Prices Opption Shares {Yenrsh Exercisahle
S0, 12-31L62 TO 00 A5 T,
51.45-33.23 AG2 AT 4.50 pLLE
S4.52-55.10 236, 500 .52 3,720
G56K,979 633 354,015
Devomber 31, 2HI®
Welghted-Average
Remaining
Exercise Number of Contractunl Life Opitions
Prices Chpption Shares (Years) Exercisahle
S0.12-50062 171,250 4 85 170,250
81.45-822%8 | 28,746 749 112907
53235303 A14.000 .36 JlEdaT
pREE T 7 1 (1)

The weighted-average remaining contractual life of exercisable options m December 31, 2010
and 2009, was 3.76 years and 6.21 vears, respectively,

As of December 31, 2010 and 20009, there was 5775,000 and $756.000, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation  cost  related 1o nonvested  share-based  compensation
arrangemenis pranted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 3.1 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the years
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ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, was S$338000 and $164,000, respectively. The
Company currently uses authonzed and unissued shares to satisfy share award exercises,

CEQ Eguity Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with Dr. Ryo Kubota. Until the initial public
offering of ws common stock, the Company 15 obligated pursuant o the employment
agreement Lo grant stock options or allow Dr Kubata to purchase restricted shares of
common stock as often as necessary to maintain Dr. Kubota's equity position in the Company
equal to at least 51% of the Company's issued and outstanding voting common stock on an
as-converted basis. The shares under these awards are subject to repurchase provisions which
lapse quarterly over thiry-six months from the date of grant, Outstanding options and
convertible securities are not included in the caleulation of Dr. Kubola's equity position
unless the options are exercised or the convertible securities are converted into the capital
stock of the Company. The purchase price of each stock grant may be made by an interest
bearing full recourse promissory note. Per the terms of the employment agreement, the
Company 15 obligated 1o periodically pay Dr. Kubota cash bonuses consisting of principal
and interest amounts due under such promissory notes and additional taxes incurred by
Dr. Kubota as a result of receiving such bonuses, if any,

The Company accounts for this arrangement in accordance with ASC 718, Share Based
Payments. The employment agreement provides equity awards to Dr, Kubota subject to
service and performance conditions. The grant and measurement date is the date at which the
Board of Directors approves the grant of the options or sale of the restricted stock to Dr.
Kubota. The fair value of the award is established as the current fair value of the Company's
comman stock, Compensation expense related to this amangement is included in general and
administrative expense,

On May 4, 2007, in connection with the offering of the Series C preferred stock, the
Company entered imo a restricted stock purchase agreement with Dr. Kubota for the issuance
of 1,339,320 shares of the Company's common steck in exchange for a three-year promissory
note in the amount of 51,942 000, The promissory note was secured by the commaon shares
and the Company has full recourse agamst the issuer, Interest accrues on the note at a rate of
4.9% compounded annually. In 2009, the Company recorded 51,081,000 in compensation
expense related o this award, which included interest of $31,000. There are no remaining
amounts due at December 31, 2000, under the promissory note,

On August 27, 2009, in connection with stock option exercises, the Company entered into a
restricted stock purchase agreement with Dr. Kubota for the issuance of 136,100 shares of the
Company’s commaon stock in exchange for a three-year promissory note in the amount of
S440,000, Concurrent with the execution of the agreements, the Company paid a bonus to
Dr. Kubota, which was used to pay the promissory note. In 2000, the Company recorded
S702,000 in compensation expense related 1o this award,

On May 28, 2010, in connection with stock option exercises. the Company entered inte a
restricted stock purchase agreement with Dr. Kubota for the issuance of 106,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock in exchange for a three-vear promissory note in the amount of
8550,000. Concurrent with the execution of the agreement, the Company paid a bonus 1o
Dr. Kubota, which was in wrn used o repay the promissory note. The Company recorded
approximately 717,000 in compensation expense in connection with the award.
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12, 401(k) Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors an employee retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. All emplovees who meet minimum eligibility
requirements are eligible to participate in the plan. To date, the Company has not matched
employvee contributions made to the plan,

13 Related-Party Transactions
Peter Kresel, M.B.A_, a director, received pavment from the Company for consulting services

and reimbursement of direct expenses. Mr. Kresel's payments for consulting services and
expense reimbursements were 5218,000 and 52 16,000, respectively, during 2010 and 2009,
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THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR
INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH A VIEW TO DNSTRIBUTION OR RESALE, AND MAY NOT BE
TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR SUCH SHARES
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR PURSUANT TO RULE 144 UNDER THE
ACT QR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT REGISTRATION 5

NOT REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT.

THIS CERTIFICATE EVIDENCES SHARES OF THE COMMON STOCK OF THE CORPORATION,
OTHER CLASSES OF SHARES OF THE CORPORATION ARE OR MAY IN THE FUTURE BE
AUTHORIZED, AND THOSE CLASSES MAY CONSIST OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF SHARES, EACH
WITH IMFFERENT RIGHTS, PREFERENCES AND LIMITATIONS, THE CORPORATION WILL
FURNISH ANY STOCKHOLDER. UPON REQUEST AND WITHOUT CHARGE, A FULL STATEMENT
OF THE POWERS, DESIGNATIONS, PREFERENCES AND RELATIVE PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL
OR OTHER SPECIAL RIGHTS OF EACH CLASS OF STOCK OR SERIES THEREOF AND THE
QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS OR RESTRICTIONS OF SUCH PREFERENCES ANIVOR RIGHTS.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shalf be construed as
though they were written out in full according 1o applicable laws or reguelations

TEM COM - as ftenants in commaon UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -
TEM ENT - as tenants by the entireties <o Custodian . ...
(Cust) (Minor)
JTTEN = as joint enants with right of survivorship under LUniform Gifts to Minors Ad ...
and not as tenants in commaon (tate)

260 3RS T RS |
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ACUCELA INC.

200 1 L1TL1

1933
1933
144

26613/00600/D0CS/1893012.1

TEN COM -

UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -

TEN ENT -

JT TEN -

26613/00600/1893008.1
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the use of our report dated May 23, 2013, except for note 16, as to which the date is November 7, 2013 in the
Securities Registration Statements of Acucela Inc. for the registration of its common stock.

Ernst & Young LLP
Seattle, WA United States of America
December 27, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Acucelalnc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Acucela Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related
statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s
internal control over financia reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financia reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financia statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial position of
Acucela Inc. at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years
then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

Seattle, Washington, United States of America
May 23, 2013, except for Note 16, as to which the date is November 7, 2013
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